
 

NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

Your attendance is requested at a meeting to be held in the 
 

The Jeffrey Room, St. Giles Square, Northampton, NN1 1DE. 
 

on Monday, 20 May 2013 
 

at 6:00 pm. 
 

D Kennedy 
Chief Executive  

AGENDA 

 
1. APOLOGIES    

Please contact Peter Storey on 01604 837356 or 
pstorey@northampton.gov.uk when submitting apologies for 
absence.  

 

  
2. MINUTES    

(Copy herewith)   
  
3. DEPUTATIONS / PUBLIC ADDRESSES    
  
4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
  
5. MATTERS OF URGENCY WHICH BY REASON OF 

SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES THE CHAIR IS OF THE 
OPINION SHOULD BE CONSIDERED   

 

  
6. FINANCIAL MONITORING REPORT   Phil Morrison ext 

7194 
Regular update of financial data to 28 February 2013. 
(Copy herewith)  

 

  
7. POLICY FOR NON-AUDIT WORK   Rebecca Smith 

(KPMG) 
(Copy herewith)   
  
8. INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL OPINION REPORT   Chris Dickens (PWC) 

(Copy herewith)   
  
9. INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT   Chris dickens (PWC) 

(Copy herewith)   
  
10. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS    



Public Participation 
Members of the public may address the Committee on any non-procedural matter listed on this agenda.  
Addresses shall not last longer than three minutes.  Committee members may then ask questions of the 
speaker.  No prior notice is required prior to the commencement of the meeting of a request to address the 
Committee. 

 

THE CHAIR TO MOVE: 
“THAT THE PUBLIC AND PRESS BE EXCLUDED FROM THE 
REMAINDER OF THE MEETING ON THE GROUNDS THAT 
THERE IS LIKELY TO BE DISCLOSURE TO THEM OF SUCH 
CATEGORIES OF EXEMPT INFORMATION AS DEFINED BY 
SECTION 100(1) OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS 
LISTED AGAINST SUCH ITEMS OF BUSINESS BY 
REFERENCE TO THE APPROPRIATE PARAGRAPH OF 
SCHEDULE 12A TO SUCH ACT.”  

 

  
<TRAILER_SECTION>
A7145 



Audit Committee, 18 March 2013 - Minutes 
 

NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

Monday, 18 March 2013 
 

 
PRESENT: Councillor Larratt (Chair); Councillor Oldham (Deputy Chair); Councillors 

Beardsworth, Lynch, Nunn and Subbarayan. 
  
 
1. APOLOGIES 

Apologies were received from Councillors Palethorpe and Strachan and from the Director of 
Resources.  
 

2. MINUTES 

The Minutes of the meeting held on 14 January 2013 were confirmed and signed by the 
Chair as a true record.  
 

3. DEPUTATIONS / PUBLIC ADDRESSES 

There were none.  
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were none.  
 

5. MATTERS OF URGENCY WHICH BY REASON OF SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES 
THE CHAIR IS OF THE OPINION SHOULD BE CONSIDERED 

There were none.  
 

6. FINANCIAL MONITORING REPORT 

The Head of Finance and Resources presented a report on the financial position as at 31 
December 2013, the position on car parking income and usage and the position in relation 
to the Council’s outstanding debts as at 31 January 2013. 
 
It was noted that daily car parking was forecast to be £200k below budget and that a further 
shortfall in season ticket income of £200k was forecast as a result of corporate contracts 
being cancelled.  In the current economic climate people were tending to purchase car 
parking tickets on an ad hoc basis rather than buying season tickets.  Officers were looking 
at ways to promote Council car parks and season tickets, including to railway commuters.  A 
report would be presented to the Committee in the summer on this issue. 
 
The Head of Finance and Resources responded to Members’ comments and questions, as 
summarised below: 
 

• The forecast reduction of £600k to the Bad Debt Provision was basically a technical 
adjustment, effectively being a rent equalisation over ten years, leading to some of 
the benefit paid to the HRA being deducted from annual subsidy from the Department 
for Work and Pensions. With the de-pooling of service charges the amount deducted 
from annual subsidy has reduced; 

• The Call Care service is being reviewed to ensure it can be viable going forward.  As 
part of that process reduction in costs, relocation of the service and ways of 
becoming more competitive were under consideration; 

• All services carry a vacancy factor and posts are reviewed when a vacancy occurs 

Agenda Item 2

1



Audit Committee, 18 March 2013 - Minutes 
 

rather than being automatically filled.  There were sometimes opportunities to “act up” 
when vacancies occurred.  Not immediately filling a vacancy generated a saving until 
that post was filled.  Officers were mindful of the need to maintain delivery of service 
and of the wellbeing of staff when vacancies occurred; 

• The training budget had been reducing over the last few years as the Council 
decreased in size.  Much of the training was now carried out on-line and through e-
learning packages, rather than bringing in trainers; 

• New software licences related to either upgrades of existing software or new software 
required for changes to service provision, e.g. the welfare reform provisions.  In the 
future, LGSS would manage IT requirements for core services, should we enter the 
partnership; 

• More people were presenting themselves as homeless now but the numbers being 
placed in bed and breakfast accommodation were reducing and the management of 
the process had been improved; 

• Commercial rents were reviewed on an annual basis.  Insurance was reviewed on an 
on-going basis.  A question was asked in respect of the costs for Northampton Alive 
and the Head of Finance and Resources undertook to look into the matter and to 
provide information to Members; 

• The Head of Finance and Resources also undertook to provide Members with further 
information on the proceeds of mortgage repossessions, which had generated a 
windfall saving of £30k; 

• The underspend of £804,034 on housing capital schemes could be as a result of 
delays to the decent homes programme resulting from the Housing Needs Review 
and the new allocations system.  The Head of Finance and Resources would look 
into the matter and inform Members as he could not confirm this was the direct 
reason.  It was noted that the underspend itself would be carried forward into 2013/14 
if the projects were to continue. 

 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the contents of the report be noted as below: 

• General Fund Revenue Monitoring (Appendix 1 of the report); 

• Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Revenue Monitoring (Appendix 2 of the report); 

• General Fund Capital Monitoring (Appendix 3 of the report); 

• HR Capital (Appendix 4 of the report). 
 

2. That the position on car parking usage and income as at 31 January 2013 be noted 
(Appendix 5 of the report). 

 
3. That the latest position in relation to the Council’s outstanding debts as at 31 January 

2013 be noted.  
 

7. PERFORMANCE REPORT TO THE END OF JANUARY 2013 

The Head of Finance and Resources reported on the Council’s key performance exceptions 
for the year to date. 
 
The Head of Finance and Resources responded to Members’ comments and questions, as 
summarised below: 
 

• The system of accountability had not changed following the re - organisation of the 
Performance Team twelve months previously but Directors and the Chief Executive 
continue to hold Heads of Service to account for performance in their service areas.  
Any problems are fed back through Heads of Service for corrective action to be 
taken.  Management Board and the Cabinet still review targets and receive a 

2



Audit Committee, 18 March 2013 - Minutes 
 

corporate indicator system of performance for consideration; 

• The Cabinet Member for Environment had attended the previous meeting of the 
Committee on 14 January 2013 to present a report on the Enterprise contract and a 
further report would be made in six months’ time.  The Cabinet Member for Finance 
stated that the Enterprise contract contained penalty clauses and some of these had 
been activated.  Discussions were on-going with the contractor; 

• Work was underway regarding homelessness, which was a national issue, including 
looking at a gateway project.  Much work was also underway to mitigate the effects of 
the welfare reforms, many of which would come into effect in April 2013, and which 
were an unknown quantity at this time.  Members asked for a report on the effects of 
the welfare reforms to a future meeting. 

 
Members considered that it would be helpful if an additional column could be added to the 
exception tables indicating the trend for each exception item. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted.  
 

8. ANTI-FRAUD ANNUAL REPORT 

The Benefit Fraud Manager presented a report summarising the anti-fraud work and activity 
undertaken during 2012/13.  Reference was also made to the high degree of uncertainty 
around the introduction of the proposed Single Fraud Investigation Service, which would 
involve NBC officers working under Department of Works and Pensions processes and 
procedures, which was delayed in December 2012 and would not now happen until 
sometime during 2014/15. 
 
It was noted that: 
 

• As a result of investigating sub-letting this year eight properties had been recovered 
for re-letting and discrepancies had been identified and resolved in five other 
properties.  Using private sector partners this year with Credit reference data had 
helped to make it easier to identify risks by making it possible to drill down into the 
available data on properties and tenants; 

• A pilot project starting on 21 March 2013 will use fraud officers and credit reference 
data to identify people on the housing register who are due to be allocated a property 
but whose circumstances have changed or were misrepresented stopping the fraud 
from entering the system in the first place. 

• The service attempted to work with Wellingborough Homes and Corby Borough 
Council but was unsuccessful in a bid for finances from the LGA.    A further funding 
bid has been made to the DCLG to continue to move this work forward and 
eventually set up an information hub.  It is planned that other local authorities will join 
this local hub where data and good practice can be exchanged.   East 
Northamptonshire and Daventry Councils have already been invited to participate. 

• The time taken from beginning an investigation to completing a prosecution takes on 
average twelve months, however there are alternatives to prosecution which can be 
taken, such as Cautions and administrative penalties which can reduce the timeframe 
to a few weeks. 

• New housing legislation is being enacted which would increase the powers available 
to local authorities in respect of housing fraud issues and the ability to prosecute 
offenders.  Officers are looking into the impacts of this and the effective deterrent it 
can bring. 

 
RESOLVED: 

3



Audit Committee, 18 March 2013 - Minutes 
 

 
That the report be noted.  
 

9. CERTIFICATION OF GRANTS AND RETURNS 2011-2012 

The External Auditor presented his report for consideration.  The report confirmed the 
change of auditor from the Audit Commission to KPMG from 1 September 2012, with the 
certification work completed by the Audit Commission prior to that date forming the basis of 
the report. 
 
A minor technical qualification had been identified on the Housing and Council Tax Benefit 
Claim but this had no effect on the amount claimed.  No amendments to any grant claims 
were required and grants and returns had been submitted on a timely basis, with working 
papers of good quality. 
 
The External Auditor stated that following the discovery of a minor error where benefit had 
been underpaid further testing had taken place and three errors had been identified in total.  
These had been corrected and the correct benefit was being paid.  With between 50,000 
and 70,000 transactions made annually in this area plus all other transactions the overall 
figure of error was approximately 2.5%.  As the errors could have resulted in overpayments 
rather than underpayments a letter of qualification had been sent to the Council.  The 
External Auditor stated that sending such a letter was a common occurrence with local 
authorities.  Further testing would take place in 2012/13 to ensure that the same errors were 
not still occurring. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the KPMG report on the certification of Grants and Returns 2011/12 be noted.  
 

10. EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2012-13 

The External Auditor presented the external audit plan prepared by KPMG, the Council’s 
external auditors, for consideration. 
 
It was noted that KPMG’s provisional fee included a period of 3 weeks set aside for the 
audit, which was shorter than the time of most previous external audits of the Council.  The 
fee was 40% lower than for the previous audit as a result of the Audit Commission tendering 
process nationally.  The fee did not allow scope to accommodate anything which was not 
correct when provided to KPMG and if the auditor had to come back for further information 
an additional fee would be charged.  The External Auditor stated that there had not been 
any difficulties with the information provided by the officers in recent years. 
 
It was noted that KPMG proposed to use their Global Services team, based offshore in 
India, for parts of the audit and NBC officers would need to be assured as to the security of 
information transferred to and from that team and also that there would be no delays to the 
audit on doing so.  The External Auditor gave details of the security arrangements which 
would be in place for this part of the work, as set out in the report. 
 
The External Auditor referred to two key audit risks – transfer to LGSS and the new Fixed 
Asset system.  He stated that KPMG would require assurances in respect of both issues 
and suggested that the Internal Auditor should be asked to look at both areas.  The External 
Auditor suggested that there were no significant concerns regarding the transfer of services 
to LGSS but this was a major change and so presented a risk.  It was noted that the SLAs 
for the services to be transferred stated that the current levels and standards of service had 
to be maintained.  Many staff would not change their place of work on day one which would 
help to prevent disruption to services.  NBC would retain the responsibility for the 

4



Audit Committee, 18 March 2013 - Minutes 
 

management of services, which would be provided through LGSS after the transfer, via staff 
who would be employed by NCC.  The s151 officer role would continue but would work for 
LGSS. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Audit Plan 2012/13 be noted.  
 

11. INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2012/13 

The Internal Auditor presented a summary of the progress made against the approved 
internal audit plan for 2012/13 up to the date of this Committee meeting (18 March 2013). 
 
It was noted that since the last update final reports had been issued in three areas 
(Budgetary Control, Debt recovery and IBS Creditors) and all were classed as Low Risk. 
 
The Internal Auditor stated that the Council’s management had requested that an 
investigation be undertaken into car parking to challenge the service and see if was being 
provided as effectively as possible. 
 
It was noted that some of the investigations planned for the current year had been deferred 
due to the changes to services being made as a result of LGSS.  The Internal Auditor stated 
that he had received assurances from the officers in respect of those deferred services. 
 
The Internal Auditor stated that with the transfer of services to LGSS the role of NBC would 
change, to become more of a commissioning body, with the skills required being those of 
project and contract management rather than service provision. 
 
The Internal Auditor was currently looking at the whole process of NBC transferring to LGSS 
and the project management and would probably look at the business case for the transfer 
to LGSS in the future. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be received.  
 

The meeting concluded at 7:35 pm 
 

5



 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC 
 

 
Audit Committee Meeting Date: 
 
Policy Document: 

 
 

Directorate: 
 
 

Accountable Cabinet Member:  
 

  
20 May 2013 
 
No 
 
Resources 
 
Cllr Alan Bottwood 
 

 
 

1. Purpose 

1.1 To present Committee with the Council’s financial position as at 28 February 
2013. 

1.2 To update Committee on the position on car parking usage and income to 31 
March 2013. 

1.3 To update Committee on the position in relation to the Council’s outstanding 
debt as at 31 March 2013. 

 

2. Recommendations 

 
2.1 To consider the contents of the following reports: 

 General Fund Revenue Monitoring (Appendix 1) 

 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Revenue Monitoring (Appendix 2)  

 General Fund Capital Monitoring (Appendix 3) 

 HRA Capital Monitoring (Appendix 4). 

2.2 To note the position on car parking usage and income as at 31 March 2013 
(Appendix 5).

2.3 To note the latest position in relation to the Council’s outstanding debts as at 
31 March 2013 (Appendix 6). 

2.4 To consider whether Committee requires any additional information in order to 
perform its governance role. 

Report Title Financial Monitoring Report 

Appendices: 
 

6 

Agenda Item 6

6



3. Issues and Choices 

 
3.1 Report Background 

3.1.1 A Finance and Performance report is taken to Cabinet on a quarterly basis 
(including the outturn report).  Finance reports are published monthly on the 
intranet with the exception of the beginning of the financial year and the final 
months of the financial year. 

3.1.2 Committee has asked to receive these reports which are brought to the first 
available meeting following their production. 

3.1.3 Committee has also asked for more detailed information in relation to car 
parking usage and income, and debt recovery.  

 

3.2 Issues 

3.2.1 Budget monitoring commenced at Period 2 (position to 31 May 2012) for this 
financial year.  The latest position and financial variances for Period 11 (to 28 
Febraury 2013) are outlined in the following appendices: 

 Appendix 1 – General Fund Revenue  

 Appendix 2 – HRA Revenue  

 Appendix 3 – General Fund Capital  

 Appendix 4 – HRA Capital. 

3.2.2 Significant variances at this point in the year are as follows: 

3.2.2.1 General Fund Revenue – (£331k) favourable 
 
Note: for ease of understanding adverse variations (i.e. additional costs or reductions income) 
are shown without brackets, while favourable variations (increased income or cost savings) 
are shown within them.  

 
 Electricity savings at vacant properties and additional insurance recharges 

to commercial tenants within Regeneration and Development have offset 
additional costs of promotional material (£17k for publication of 
Northampton Guides for Northampton Alive), for the Northampton Alive 
festival.  

 Planning activity has been lower than estimated and the anticipated price 
increase by central government has been delayed, resulting in a projected 
shortfall in income of £69k. However, this has been more than matched by 
additional Building Control income and management action to delay the 
filling of vacancies, resulting in overall savings of (£196k). 

 Additional software licence and temporary communication staff costs have 
been incurred within Resources; these have been partially offset by 
managed vacancies. 

 The proceeds of mortgage repossessions from several years ago, which 
were previously held on the balance sheet, have now been credited to the 
General Fund revenue account resulting in a windfall saving of (£30k).  

 There has been a reduction in external audit fees which was not known 
when the budget was set. Together with savings on the internal audit 
contract, this has produced a saving of (£71k). 

7



 Savings of around (£44k) have arisen through energy prices rising by less 
than originally expected. 

 Lower than expected Housing Benefit Subsidy of £47k is projected, largely 
as a result of increased numbers in bed and breakfast accommodation 
which attracts lower rates of subsidy. Vacant posts have been held open to 
offset this loss of income.   

 A number of key service areas under Strategic Housing are showing 
forecast overspends due to Call Care contract cancellations. Vacancies 
are being held to help manage the overall Strategic Housing budget. In 
addition  management are now forecasting additional income from 
licensing of HIMO’s and other admin fees resulting in a net saving of 
(£22k) for the service. 

 The Customers and Communities Directorate is projecting an underspend 
of (£80k) mainly as a result of reduced gas and NNDR costs and posts 
being held vacant. 

 The Community Safety service is reporting a £44k overspend due to the 
cancellation of the Daventry CCTV contract becoming more costly than 
originally forecast and a partial loss of funding for the Crime and Disorder 
service. 

 Lower take up of the free rat control service has produced a saving of 
(£36k). 

 Savings of (£117k) are forecast through the reorganisation of the 
Neighbourhood Management service and the recovery of depot sewerage 
costs. 

 An overspend of £40k is forecast for the Museum service, as a 
consequence of the vacancy factor not being achieved and a fall in income 
from donations and sponsorship. 

 Additional costs of £48k are projected as the consequence of having to put 
some higher specification printing out to private suppliers. These costs will 
be recharged to the service areas which commissioned the work. 

 Savings of (£39k) in IT are mainly the result of managed vacancies, while 
additional grant income and external contributions towards Events have 
produced savings of (£33k).  

 Daily Car Parking income is forecast to be £200k below budget. A further 
shortfall in season ticket income of £210k as a result of corporate contracts 
being cancelled is also forecast. 

 Lower than estimated electricity prices at the bus station and the re-
allocation of security patrols to car parks have saved (£97k). 

 The amount of money required to be set aside to finance borrowing is 
(£325k) below budget as less borrowing was undertaken in 2011-12 than 
planned. £141k of this has been transferred to the debt financing 
earmarked reserve to protect against future interest rate volatility. Other 
variations, including an additional (£109k) interest on a backdated VAT 
claim and a reduction in leasing costs, result in a forecast saving of 
(£111k). 

 
3.2.2.2 HRA Revenue – (£677k) favourable 

 
 Dwelling rent income is forecast to be (£261k) higher than originally 

estimated, largely as the result of improvements made in the management 
of void dwellings resulting in nearly halving the void rate. 

8



 Service charge income is forecast to be £284k lower, reflecting reduced 
charges to leaseholders in respect of repairs and maintenance.  

 General Management costs are (£58k) lower largely as a result of savings 
on the stock condition survey now being conducted under the Stock 
Options project.  

 Repairs and maintenance costs in relation to gas systems and boilers have 
increased by £67k.   

 There have been further savings (£57k) on Council Tax and standing utility 
charges for empty properties, following the demolition of Robinson House 
and the refurbishment of Paget House. 

 Contributions to the Bad Debt Provision are forecast to be reduced by 
(£150k), reflecting better than budgeted arrears performance.  

 Rent Rebate Subsidy Limitation reductions are forecast to be (£623k) less 
than budgeted as a consequence of de-pooling service charges from rents. 

 Net recharges from the General Fund are forecast to be (£72k) lower than 
budget. 

 However, interest charges on new long-term borrowing are higher by 
£295k, largely due to last minute changes to interest rates at the time of 
the HRA Subsidy buyout. 

 The original budget anticipated drawing £2.0m from earmarked reserves, 
assuming an early repayment of housing debt of £8.2m. Fixed repayment 
schedules mean that this amount (together with other net savings during 
the year) will now be a contribution to earmarked reserves. 

 Changes in the funding of capital expenditure have resulted from the move 
to self-financing. There has been an increase in the Major Repair 
Allowance of £2.9m and a consequent a (£2.2m) reduction in Revenue 
Contributions to Capital. 

 The overall effect of these movements is that the contribution to earmarked 
reserves is forecast to be (£7.9m) more than originally budgeted. 

 
3.2.2.3 Capital Programme 

 
 HRA – The approved changes in year for the Head of Strategic Housing, 

(approved at 13th February 2013 Cabinet), are made up of: 
Sheltered Housing Improvements (£650k), Eleonore House project,re-

phased to 2013/14.Planning work is completed and project delivery will 
be in 2013/14. 

IT Capital (£170k) the scheduling of works tool for Property Maintenance 
has been re-phased to 2013/14 

Woodside Way New Build £16k – this scheme was completed in 2010/11 
but the retention payment came due in 2012/13 so budget had to be 
found for it.  The original project had underspent. 

 
 

3.2.3 A comparison of car parking usage and income over the last three financial 
years is shown at Appendix 5. 

3.2.4 The managed debt analysis and commentary to 31 March 2013 are shown at 
Appendix 6. 

 

3.3 Choices (Options)

9



This report provides a statement of current year activity so no options are relevant. 
 
 
4. Implications (including financial implications) 

 
4.1 Policy 

4.1.1 There are no specific policy implications arising from this report. 

 

4.2 Resources and Risk 

4.2.1 The reports at Appendices 1-4 detail any resource issues facing the Council 
from its forecast financial position for 2012/13. 

4.2.2 Appendix 5 provides further detail in relation to car parking usage and income 
compared with the two previous financial years. 

4.2.3 Appendix 6 provides a snapshot of the Council’s debt position and its 
management. 

 
4.3 Legal 

4.3.1 There are no specific legal implications arising from this report. 

 

4.4 Equality 

4.4.1 There are no specific equalities implications arising from this report. 

 

4.5 Consultees (Internal and External) 

4.5.1 None at this stage.   

 

4.6 How the Proposals deliver Priority Outcomes 

4.6.1 Protecting and enhancing the reputation of Northampton Borough Council. 

 

4.7 Other Implications 

4.7.1 Not applicable 

 

5. Background Papers 

 

 

Isabell Procter 
Director of Resources, ext 8757 

10



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

R
e
v
is

e
d

 

B
u

d
g

e
t

F
o

re
c
a
s
t

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

£
0
0
0
's

£
0
0
0
's

£
0
0
0
's

D
R

0
2

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
, 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 &

 P
la

n
n
in

g
2
3
9

2
4
7

7
G

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
, 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 a

n
d
 P

la
n
n
in

g
2
3
9

2
4
7

7
G

F
A

0
1

A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

1
,5

1
3

1
,4

8
0

(3
3

)
G

S
a
v
in

g
s
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 

a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
p
o
s
ts

 b
e
in

g
 v

a
c
a
n
t

F
A

0
6

O
th

e
r 

B
u
ild

in
g
s
 &

 L
a
n
d

(1
,4

6
0
)

(1
,4

7
3
)

(1
4

)
G

R
G

0
1

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 &

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

9
8

9
2

(6
)

G

R
G

0
2

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 &

 I
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

1
,0

6
0

1
,0

5
3

(7
)

G

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

1
,2

1
1

1
,1

5
1

(6
0

)
G

P
E

0
2

B
u
ild

in
g
 C

o
n
tr

o
l

(3
6

)
(6

0
)

(2
3

)
G

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 B

u
ild

in
g
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
in

c
o
m

e
 o

f 
(£

1
0
k
) 

a
n
d
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
t 
d
a
n

g
e
ro

u
s
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
o
f 

(£
5
k
).

P
E

0
3

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

C
o
n
tr

o
l

4
3
2

3
3
7

(9
4

)
G

P
la

n
n
in

g
 F

e
e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 (

£
3
0
k
),

 L
e
g
a
l 
c
o
s
ts

 r
e
c
o
v
e
ry

 (
£

1
4
k
) 

a
n
d
 s

ta
ff

in
g
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 o

f 
(£

7
5
k
) 

o
ff

s
e
t 
b
y
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

c
o
s
ts

 o
f 

£
2
5
k

P
E

0
6

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

la
n
n
in

g
1
1
5

1
1
0

(5
)

G

P
E

1
5

J
o
in

t 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 U

n
it
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r

2
5
2

2
5
2

(0
)

G

P
E

1
7

P
la

n
n
in

g
 &

 R
e
g
e
n
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

1
0
0

8
1

(1
9

)
G

R
G

0
4

P
la

n
n
in

g
 P

o
lic

y
 &

 C
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

7
3
3

6
7
9

(5
4

)
G

S
a
v
in

g
s
 m

a
in

ly
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
p
o
s
ts

 b
e
in

g
 v

a
c
a
n
t.

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

la
n
n
in

g
1
,5

9
5

1
,4

0
0

(1
9

6
)

B

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
, 

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e
 &

 P
la

n
n

in
g

3
,0

4
5

2
,7

9
8

(2
4

8
)

B

F
A

0
4

N
o
n
 D

is
tr

ib
u
te

d
 C

o
s
ts

4
,3

0
5

4
,3

0
5

0
G

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
4
,3

0
5

4
,3

0
5

0
G

D
R

0
3

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

1
,4

4
9

1
,4

2
9

(1
9

)
G

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

1
,4

4
9

1
,4

2
9

(1
9

)
G

H
R

0
1

H
u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

9
6
8

9
7
2

5
G

G
C

0
8

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s

2
2
4

2
6
0

3
5

G
£
2
7
k
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
te

m
p
o
ra

ry
 s

ta
ff

 c
o
s
ts

. 
 £

7
k
 o

n
e
 o

ff
 p

a
y
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

a
 s

o
ft

w
a
re

 

lic
e
n
c
e
.

G
C

1
5

E
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
 P

la
n
n
in

g
5
3

6
3

1
0

G

P
I2

0
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 C

h
a
n
g
e

2
7
4

2
6
0

(1
4

)
G

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

h
a
n
g
e

1
,5

1
8

1
,5

5
4

3
6

G

H
S

0
2

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e
 &

 R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

8
6

9
5

9
G

F
A

0
2

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

1
,3

5
3

1
,3

2
3

(3
0

)
G

(£
2

3
k
) 

tr
a

n
s
fe

r 
to

 r
e

v
e

n
u

e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
c
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
m

o
rt

g
a

g
e

 r
e

p
o
s
s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 h
e

ld
 o

n
 t
h

e
 b

a
la

n
c
e

 s
h

e
e

t

F
A

0
3

A
u
d
it

3
5
3

2
8
2

(7
1

)
G

L
o
w

e
r 

s
c
a
le

 o
f 

fe
e
s
 f

o
r 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 t

h
a
n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 a

n
d
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t.

F
A

0
5

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts

6
5

4
4

(2
1

)
G

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 f

ro
m

 s
w

it
c
h
in

g
 o

f 
b
a
n
k
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t.

F
A

0
8

O
ff

ic
e
 A

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

1
,6

1
4

1
,5

7
0

(4
4

)
G

M
a
in

ly
 d

u
e
 t

o
 s

a
v
in

g
s
  

a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
e
n
e
rg

y
 p

ri
c
e
 r

is
e
s
 n

o
t 

b
e
in

g
 a

s
 h

ig
h
 a

s
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
. 

F
A

1
9

E
x
c
h
e
q
u
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e

4
8
9

4
7
2

(1
7

)
G

H
S

0
1

B
e
n
e
fi
ts

(1
0

0
)

(7
0

)
3
0

G
£
4
7
k
 l
o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 
S

u
b
s
id

y
, 
la

rg
e
ly

 a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
a
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 c

a
s
e
lo

a
d
 o

n
 b

e
d
 a

n
d
 

b
re

a
k
fa

s
t 

w
h
ic

h
 a

tt
ra

c
ts

 l
o
w

e
r 

s
u
b
s
id

y
 l
e
v
e
ls

, 
p
a
rt

ia
lly

 o
ff

s
e
t 

b
y
 a

 s
a
v
in

g
 o

n
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
 v

a
c
a
n
c
ie

s
 (

£
1
7
k
).

 

D
iv

is
io

n
K

s
a

S
e
rv

ic
e
 A

re
a

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

11



R
e
v
is

e
d

 

B
u

d
g

e
t

F
o

re
c
a
s
t

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

D
iv

is
io

n
K

s
a

S
e
rv

ic
e
 A

re
a

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

H
S

0
3

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s

3
3
7

3
5
3

1
6

G

P
R

0
1

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t

1
3
9

1
3
7

(2
)

G

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e
 &

 R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

4
,3

3
7

4
,2

0
5

(1
3

2
)

B

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

1
1
,6

0
9

1
1
,4

9
4

(1
1

5
)

B

D
R

0
5

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

H
o
u
s
in

g
1
7
2

1
7
2

0
G

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

H
o
u
s
in

g
1
7
2

1
7
2

0
G

C
S

0
2

C
a
ll 

C
a
re

(2
2

9
)

2
6

2
5
5

R
A

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

C
a
ll 

C
a
re

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

a
n
c
e
lle

d
, 

re
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 l
o
w

e
r 

le
v
e
ls

 o
f 

in
c
o
m

e
. 

T
h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

p
a
rt

ly
 o

ff
s
e
t 

b
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 i
n
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

. 

H
S

0
5

H
o
m

e
 C

h
o
ic

e
 &

 R
e
s
e
tt
le

m
e
n
t

4
2
6

3
8
4

(4
1

)
G

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 a
 v

a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 

p
o
s
ts

 b
e
in

g
 h

e
ld

 v
a
c
a
n
t 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
is

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 m
a
n
a
g
e
 t

h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 

b
u
d
g
e
ts

.

H
S

1
2

H
o
u
s
in

g
 O

p
ti
o
n
s

4
4
9

4
3
8

(1
1

)
G

H
S

1
3

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 H
o
u
s
in

g
1
3
0

1
3
0

(0
)

G

P
E

0
9

T
ra

v
e
lle

rs
 S

it
e
s

2
6

4
(2

2
)

G
E

m
p
lo

y
e
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 o

n
 t

ra
v
e
lle

rs
 s

it
e
 d

u
e
 t

o
 a

 v
a
c
a
n
t 

p
o
s
t 
A

p
ri

l 
u
n
ti
l 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r.

 A
ls

o
, 

a
 l
o
w

e
r 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

w
id

e
 T

ra
v
e
lle

rs
 U

n
it
.

P
E

1
2

P
ri
v
a
te

 S
e
c
to

r 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 S

o
lu

ti
o
n
s

6
8

(1
3

5
)

(2
0

3
)

B
H

ig
h
e
r 

lic
e
n
s
in

g
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 f

ro
m

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 r

e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r

e
-l
ic

e
n
s
in

g
 o

f 
H

o
u
s
e
s
 i
n
 M

u
lt
ip

le
 

O
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
. 
(£

1
5
9
k
) 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 D

is
a
b
le

d
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 G

ra
n
t 
a
d
m

in
 f

e
e

s
.

R
G

0
3

H
o
u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y

5
6

5
6

0
G

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 H
o
u
s
in

g
9
2
6

9
0
4

(2
2

)
G

H
o

u
s
in

g
1
,0

9
8

1
,0

7
6

(2
2

)
G

C
X

0
1

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

1
8
4

1
8
5

0
G

G
C

0
2

C
iv

ic
 a

n
d
 M

a
y
o
ra

l 
E

x
p
e
n
s
e
s

1
0
4

1
0
1

(4
)

G

G
C

0
5

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y

4
3

4
4

1
G

G
C

0
6

C
o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

&
 M

a
n
a
g
e
ri
a
l 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

5
6
3

5
4
1

(2
2

)
G

M
o
s
tl
y
 d

u
e
 t

o
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 o

n
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
 c

o
s
ts

.

L
D

0
2

E
le

c
to

ra
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

1
7
4

1
8
6

1
2

G

L
D

0
3

L
a
n
d
 C

h
a
rg

e
s

(6
1

)
(7

1
)

(1
0

)
G

L
D

0
4

L
e
g
a
l

7
1
0

7
1
1

1
G

L
D

0
8

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

3
0
3

2
9
8

(4
)

G

B
o
ro

u
g
h
 S

e
c
re

ta
ry

2
,0

2
1

1
,9

9
4

(2
7

)
G

B
o

ro
u

g
h

 S
e
c
re

ta
ry

2
,0

2
1

1
,9

9
4

(2
7

)
G

D
R

0
1

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

C
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 a
n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
2
7
6

2
3
7

(3
9

)
G

S
a
v
in

g
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
p
o
s
ts

 b
e
in

g
 v

a
c
a
n
t.

  

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

C
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 a
n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
2
7
6

2
3
7

(3
9

)
G

G
C

0
4

P
o
lic

y
8

4
8

4
0

G
A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
o
s
ts

 i
n
c
u
rr

e
d
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
.

G
C

0
9

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 &

 O
th

e
r 

G
ra

n
ts

1
,2

1
8

1
,2

2
5

7
G

G
C

1
0

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

1
4
8

8
6

(6
2

)
G

S
a
v
in

g
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 v

a
c
a
n
t 

p
o
s
ts

.

G
C

1
1

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
s

4
2
7

3
8
7

(4
0

)
G

(£
8

k
) 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 o

n
 N

N
D

R
, 

(£
1

1
k
) 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 o

n
 g

a
s
 &

 (
£

1
8

k
) 

a
d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
re

n
t 

in
c
o
m

e
.

L
S

0
1

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

1
1
1

9
6

(1
5

)
G

S
S

0
1

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

9
9

8
9

(1
0

)
G

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

2
,0

1
1

1
,9

3
1

(8
0

)
G

C
E

0
2

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
4
0
5

4
4
9

4
4

G

2
5
k
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
e
 C

ri
m

e
 &

 D
is

o
rd

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 n

o
t 

g
o
in

g
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
. 

T
h
e
 c

a
n
c
e
lla

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

D
a
v
e
n
tr

y
 C

C
T

V
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

o
re

 c
o
s
tl
y
 t

h
a
n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
. 

 F
u
rt

h
e
r 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 C

C
T

V
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 e

v
id

e
n
t 

d
u
e
 t
o
 t

h
e
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t.

C
E

0
4

L
e
is

u
re

 C
o
n
tr

a
c
t

9
4
6

9
3
9

(7
)

G

L
D

0
5

L
ic

e
n
s
in

g
(2

3
9

)
(2

3
4

)
4

G

12



R
e
v
is

e
d

 

B
u

d
g

e
t

F
o

re
c
a
s
t

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

D
iv

is
io

n
K

s
a

S
e
rv

ic
e
 A

re
a

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

P
E

0
7

P
e
s
t 
C

o
n
tr

o
l

4
2

7
(3

6
)

G
T

h
e
 n

e
w

 r
a
t 

c
o
n
tr

o
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 f

o
r 

th
o
s
e
 o

n
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 o

r 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

T
a

x
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

w
a
s
 o

n
ly

 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 o

n
 1

 O
c
to

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 t
a
k
e
 u

p
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
o
 b

e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 b

e
lo

w
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 l
e
v
e
ls

.

P
E

1
0

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

3
3
2

3
3
9

7
G

P
E

1
1

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

1
,0

5
8

9
4
1

(1
1

7
)

B
S

a
v
in

g
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
. 

 

R
e
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 

p
ri
o
r 

y
e
a
r 

in
c
o
m

e
 f

o
r 

s
e
w

e
ra

g
e
 a

n
d
 d

e
la

y
 i
n
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

re
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
 c

o
s
ts

. 

P
E

1
6

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

u
b
lic

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

7
3

7
6

3
G

S
S

0
9

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 C

o
n
tr

a
c
t

6
,6

7
9

6
,6

7
9

0
G

S
S

2
0

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

(3
7

2
)

(3
5

3
)

1
8

G

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

u
b
lic

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

8
,9

2
4

8
,8

4
2

(8
3

)
G

C
E

0
6

M
u
s
e
u
m

s
 a

n
d
 A

rt
s

6
7
1

7
1
1

4
0

G
£
3
2
k
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n
d
 v

a
c
a
n
c
y
 f

a
c
to

r 
n

o
t 
b
e
in

g
 m

e
t.
 £

1
0
k
 l
e
g
a
l 
a
d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 o

w
n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 

a
rt

e
fa

c
ts

. 
 S

a
v
in

g
s
 o

n
 u

ti
lit

ie
s
 o

f 
(£

2
0
k
).

  

C
S

0
3

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

&
 C

u
lt
u
ra

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

1
0
6

9
0

(1
6

)
G

C
S

0
4

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

A
c
c
e
s
s

1
,5

4
5

1
,5

5
8

1
2

G

C
S

0
5

P
ri
n
t 
U

n
it

2
2
3

2
7
1

4
8

G
A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
o
s
ts

 o
f 

o
u
ts

o
u
rc

in
g
 p

ri
n
ti
n
g
 o

f 
h
ig

h
e
r 

te
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
c
o
v
e
re

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

P
I0

2
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 T

e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y

2
,1

3
1

2
,0

9
2

(3
9

)
G

(£
3

3
k
) 

S
a

v
in

g
s
 r

e
s
u

lt
in

g
 f

ro
m

 v
a

c
a

n
t 
p

o
s
ts

P
I1

4
T

e
le

p
h
o
n
e
s

2
4
7

2
4
7

0
G

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

&
 C

u
lt
u
ra

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

4
,9

2
4

4
,9

6
8

4
4

G

C
E

0
3

E
v
e
n
ts

4
2
4

4
1
0

(1
4

)
G

C
E

2
3

T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

(3
2

)
(1

8
)

1
5

G

C
E

2
4

C
a
r 

P
a
rk

in
g

(1
,8

6
4
)

(1
,4

4
4
)

4
2
0

R

C
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 d

a
ily

 t
ic

k
e
t 

in
c
o
m

e
 i
s
 d

e
c
re

a
s
in

g
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 a

 s
h
o
rt

fa
ll 

in
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 o

f 
£
2
0
0
k
. 

T
h
e
re

 h
a

v
e
 a

ls
o
 

b
e
e
n
 s

o
m

e
 s

e
a
s
o
n
 t
ic

k
e
t 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 c
a
n
c
e
lle

d
, 
a
n
d
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

s
h
o
rt

fa
ll 

o
f 

£
2

3
0
k
. 

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 u

ti
lit

y
 c

o
s
ts

 (
£
6
0
k
) 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 o

ff
s
e
t 

a
g
a
in

s
t 

£
2
5
k
 r

e
a
lig

n
e
d
 s

e
c
u
ri
ty

 c
o
s
ts

 a
n
d
 £

5
k
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

d
e
e
p
 

c
le

a
n
in

g
 G

ro
s
v
e
n
o
r 

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

.

C
E

2
6

B
u
s
 S

ta
ti
o
n

2
4
2

1
4
4

(9
7

)
G

L
o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 e

le
c
tr

ic
it
y
 p

ri
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
e

c
u
ri
ty

 p
a
tr

o
ls

 t
o
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

s
 (

o
ff

s
e
t 

a
g
a
in

s
t 

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 s

e
c
u
ri

ty
 c

o
s
ts

).
  

F
A

0
9

M
a
rk

e
ts

5
1

4
2

(9
)

G

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

(1
,1

8
0
)

(8
6

6
)

3
1
4

R

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
C

u
s
to

m
e
rs

 a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s

1
4
,9

5
5

1
5
,1

1
2

1
5
7

R

T
o

ta
l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 B

u
d

g
e
ts

3
2
,7

2
8

3
2
,4

7
4

(2
5

4
)

B

D
e
b
t 

F
in

a
n
c
in

g
1
,6

7
3

1
,5

6
2

(1
1

1
)

B

M
in

im
u
m

 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 P

ro
v
is

io
n
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 t

h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

m
o
n
e
y
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 s

e
t 

a
s
id

e
 t
o
 f

in
a
n
c
e
 b

o
rr

o
w

in
g
 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 f

in
a

n
c
e
 l
e

a
s
e
s
),

 i
s
 £

3
2

5
k
 b

e
lo

w
 b

u
d

g
e

t,
 m

a
in

ly
 d

u
e

 t
o

 c
a
p

it
a

l 
fi
n

a
n

c
in

g
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

 2
0

1
1

-

1
2
 (

th
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
c
a
p
it
a
l 
re

c
e
ip

ts
 i
n
s
te

a
d
 o

f 
b
o
rr

o
w

in
g
 a

n
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 f

ro
m

 p
la

n
n
e
d
 f

in
a
n
c
in

g
 l
e
a
d
in

g
 t
o
 M

R
P

 

s
a
v
in

g
s
),

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 c

a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 o
f 

c
a
p
it
a
l 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 d
e
la

y
in

g
 M

R
P

 i
m

p
a
c
t 

to
 f

u
tu

re
 y

e
a
rs

. 
£
1
4
1
k
 o

f 
th

is
 

s
a
v
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 t

ra
n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 t

o
 a

 d
e
b
t 

fi
n
a
n
c
in

g
 e

a
rm

a
rk

e
d
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
 t

o
 m

it
ig

a
te

 r
is

k
 i
n
 t

h
e
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

in
te

re
s
t 

b
u
d
g
e
ts

 i
n
 2

0
1
3
-1

4
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
a
 b

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
 o

f 
fa

lli
n
g
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
ra

te
s
. 
A

n
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 

£
1
0
9
k
 i
n
te

re
s
t 

o
n
 a

 

b
a
c
k
d
a
te

d
 V

A
T

 c
la

im
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

ro
m

 H
M

R
C

. 
T

h
is

 h
a
s
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d

e
b
t 

fi
n
a
n
c
in

g
 

e
a
rm

a
rk

e
d
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
. 

In
te

re
s
t 

a
c
h
e
iv

e
d
 o

n
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts

 i
s
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 

a
t 

a
ro

u
n
d
 £

1
4
k
 o

v
e
r 

b
u
d
g
e
t.

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 a

ri
s
e
 f

ro
m

 o
n
 i
n
te

re
s
t 

o
n
 f

in
a
n
c
e
 l
e
a
s
e
s
, 
w

h
e
re

 a
c
tu

a
l 
lia

b
ili

ty
 i
s
 a

ro
u
n
d
 £

2
1
k
 l
e
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 b

u
d
g
e
te

d
. 

R
e
c
h
a
rg

e
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 H

R
A

 a
re

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
a
t 

a
ro

u
n
d
 £

1
1
2
k
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 b

u
d
g
e
te

d
, 

d
u
e
 b

o
th

 t
o
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

le
v
e
ls

 o
f 

fo
re

c
a
s
t 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 H

R
A

 b
a
la

n
c
e
s
, 

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 b

u
d
g
e
te

d
 r

a
te

 o
f 

re
tu

rn
 o

n
 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts

. 

R
e
c
h
a
rg

e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 H

R
A

(5
,4

7
0
)

(5
,4

3
6
)

3
4

G

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 f

ro
m

 r
e
s
e
rv

e
s

(1
,1

8
5
)

(1
,1

8
5
)

0
G

C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

fu
n
d
in

g
(2

7
,7

5
5

)
(2

7
,7

5
5

)
0

G

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t

o
 G

F
 B

a
la

n
c
e
s

1
0
0

1
0
0

0
G

T
o

ta
l 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 B
u

d
g

e
ts

(3
2

,6
3
7

)
(3

2
,7

1
4

)
(7

7
)

G

T
o

ta
l 

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
9
1

(2
4

0
)

(3
3

1
)

13



UPDATED FOR MANAGEMENT POST PERIOD CLOSE APPENDIX 2

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

FINANCIAL YEAR 2012/2013

PRODUCED 06/08/2009

For Period Ending 28 February 2013

£,000's £,000's £,000's £,000's RAG

Current Budget Actuals Forecast Outturn Variance Status

INCOME

Rents - Dwellings Only (46,572) (41,961) (46,833) (261)

Rents - Non Dwellings Only (1,112) (1,011) (1,107) 5

Service Charges (2,453) (2,000) (2,169) 284

Other Income (85) (50) (51) 34

Total Income (50,222) (45,022) (50,160) 62 A

EXPENDITURE

Repairs and Maintenance 10,990 10,569 11,058 67

General Management 6,294 4,716 6,313 18

Special Services 3,173 2,802 3,179 6

Rents, Rates, Taxes & Other Charges 87 14 31 (57)

Increase in Bad Debt Provision 450 275 300 (150)

Rent Rebate Subsidy Deductions 643 18 20 (623)

Total Expenditure 21,638 18,394 20,900 (738) B

Net Cost of Services (28,584) (26,628) (29,260) (677) B

Net Recharges to the General Fund 4,921 4,445 4,849 (72)

Interest & Financing Costs 6,072 5,836 6,367 295

Voluntary Debt Repayment 8,198 0 0 (8,198)

RCCO 3,148 849 926 (2,222)

Depreciation/MRA 8,246 10,205 11,133 2,887

Net Contribution (from) / to Earmarked Reserves (2,000) 5,487 5,986 7,986

Net Transfer From / (To) Working Balance (0) 194 0 0 G

Working Balance b/f (5,000) (5,000) (5,000) 0

Working Balance Outturn (5,000) (4,806) (5,000) 0 G

Notes on Forecast Variances

Rents - Dwellings Only

Projected higher rent income largely as a result of faster turnaround times on void properties (currently 1.27% against estimated 2.5%).

Service Charges

Anticipated lower charges to Leaseholders in respect of repair and maintenance expenditure (includes prior year adjustment).

Note that depooled service charges are now shown on this line (this income was previously included in Dwelling Rents).

Repairs and Maintenance

Higher levels of repairs and maintenance work to gas systems and boilers than had been anticipated.

Rents, Rates, Taxes & Other Charges

Savings largely relate to Robinson House and Paget House (Council Tax & utility cost savings for empty properties).

Increase in Bad Debt Provision

Lower contribution to the Bad Debt Provision, reflecting lower levels of rent arrears than projected. 

Rent Rebate Subsidy Deductions

Lower expenditure as a result of the depooling of service charges from rent.

Interest & Financing Costs

Interest rates on the new HRA long-term borrowing is higher than budgeted.

Voluntary Debt Repayment / Contribution to Reserves

Fixed debt repayment schedules have been put in place. Balances will be transferred to HRA Reserves.

RCCO / Depreciation/MRA

The implementation of the Self-Financing HRA has led to changes in the funding of capital expenditure. There has been an increase 

in the Major Repairs Allowance (MRA) and a subsequent reduction in the required contribution from Revenue (RCCO).

14



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T

S
 (

C
A

P
IT

A
L

) 
: 

(C
o

s
t 

C
e
n

tr
e
 &

 H
e
a
d

 o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
)

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 Y

E
A

R
 2

0
1
2
/2

0
1
3

P
E

R
IO

D
 1

1
 (

F
e
b

ru
a
ry

 2
0
1
3
)

2
0
1
2
0
1

2
0
1
2
0
0
-2

0
1
2
1
1

2
0
1
2
0
0
-2

0
1
2
1
1

2
0
1
2
0
0
-2

0
1
2
1
1

2
0
1
2
1
1

2
0
1

2
1
1

2
0
1
2
1
1

P
ro

je
c
t 

C
o

d
e
 &

 P
ro

je
c
t 

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

A
p

p
ro

v
e
d

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

F
e
b

ru
a
ry

 2
0
1
2

A
p

p
ro

v
e
d

 

C
h

a
n

g
e
s

In
 Y

e
a
r

L
a
te

s
t 

A
p

p
ro

v
e
d

 

B
u

d
g

e
ts

Y
T

D
 A

c
tu

a
l 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

Y
e
a
r 

E
n

d
 S

p
e
n

d

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

-

U
n

d
e
rs

p
e
n

d
 /
 

+
O

v
e
rs

p
e
n

d
 f

o
r 

Y
e
a
r 

E
n

d

B
u

d
g

e
t

C
a
rr

ie
d

F
o

rw
a
rd

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 

R
A

G

C
a
rr

y
 

F
o

rw
a
rd

 

R
A

G

A
B

C
=

A
+

B
D

E
F

=
E

-C
G

£
£

£
£

£
£

£

C
h

ri
s
 C

a
v
a
n

a
g

h
 (

C
C

4
)

B
A

1
2
2
 -

 F
ir
e
 S

a
fe

ty
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
W

o
rk

s
0

8
3
,2

9
1

8
3
,2

9
1

6
9
,2

9
1

8
3
,2

9
1

0
0

G
G

B
A

1
3
2
 -

 S
t 
C

ri
s
p
in

 C
h
a
n
g
in

g
 R

o
o
m

s
, 
T

o
ile

t,
 C

a
r 

p
a
rk

0
0

0
0

0
0

7
5
0
,9

8
9

G
G

B
A

1
3
3
 -

 S
t 
C

ri
s
p
in

 F
o
o
tb

a
ll 

P
it
c
h
e
s
 a

n
d
 P

la
y
 P

ro
v
is

io
n

0
1
2
6
,6

3
9

1
2
6
,6

3
9

4
0
5

1
2
6
,6

3
9

0
1
0
0
,0

0
0

G
R

B
A

1
3
6
 -

 W
a
te

r 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
W

o
rk

s
8
5
,0

0
0

1
8
3
,5

8
5

2
6
8
,5

8
5

2
6
7
,0

7
6

2
6
8
,5

8
5

0
9
3
,0

0
0

G
R

B
A

1
3
8
 -

 C
e
m

e
te

ri
e
s
 R

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 
W

o
rk

s
0

3
3
,2

3
4

3
3
,2

3
4

3
3
,2

3
4

3
3
,2

3
4

0
0

G
G

B
A

1
3
9
 -

 W
o
rk

s
 t
o
 C

h
u
rc

h
y
a
rd

s
 (

fo
o
tp

a
th

s
 a

n
d
 b

o
u
d
a
ry

 w
a
lls

)
0

2
,0

0
0

2
,0

0
0

1
,8

7
1

2
,0

0
0

0
0

G
G

B
A

1
4
0
 -

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 -

 D
D

A
 I
s
s
u
e
s

0
0

0
4
,5

2
7

4
,5

2
7

4
,5

2
7

0
G

G

B
A

1
4
1
 -

 U
n
e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 y

e
a
r 

F
a
ilu

re
s

0
0

0
-2

7
7
 

-2
7
7
 

-2
7
7
 

0
G

G

B
A

1
4
6
 -

 W
a
te

r 
H

y
g
ie

n
e
 -

 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

8
2
,0

0
0

-7
0
,0

0
0
 

1
2
,0

0
0

0
1
2
,0

0
0

0
7
0
,0

0
0

G
R

B
A

1
6
9
 -

 N
o
rt

h
a
m

p
to

n
 S

k
a
te

p
a
rk

0
2
9
4
,1

0
5

2
9
4
,1

0
5

2
7
6
,5

9
9

2
9
4
,1

0
5

0
0

G
G

B
A

1
7
9
 -

 A
b
in

g
to

n
 P

a
rk

, 
C

h
a
n
g
in

g
 R

o
o
m

 r
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t

0
1
9
7

1
9
7

0
0

-1
9
7
 

0
G

G

B
A

1
8
0
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 I
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

0
0

0
0

0
0

5
0
0
,0

0
0

G
G

B
A

1
8
1
 -

 R
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 
A

b
in

g
to

n
 P

a
rk

 C
o
tt
a
g
e
s
 1

&
2

0
0

0
1
,7

8
0

1
,7

8
0

1
,7

8
0

0
G

G

B
A

1
8
3
 -

 T
im

b
e
r 

F
o
o
tb

ri
d
g
e
 R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

0
0

0
8
2
7

8
3
7

8
3
7

0
G

G

B
A

1
8
4
 -

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 R

id
in

g
s
 C

a
r 

P
a
rk

s
0

0
0

2
7
8

0
0

0
G

G

B
A

1
8
6
 -

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 P
a
rk

s
 I
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
6
5
,0

0
0

2
1
0
,4

8
2

2
7
5
,4

8
2

2
0
2
,6

1
5

2
7
5
,4

8
2

0
2
7
,2

0
0

G
A

B
A

1
8
7
 -

 R
a
c
e
c
o
u
rs

e
 B

o
w

lin
g
 G

re
e
n
 F

o
o
tp

a
th

s
0

3
5
0

3
5
0

0
3
5
0

0
0

G
G

B
A

1
8
9
 -

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 A

s
s
e
t 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

2
0
0
,0

0
0

5
1
,7

7
7

2
5
1
,7

7
7

2
0
5
,9

0
8

2
5
1
,7

7
7

0
3
0
,0

0
0

G
A

B
A

1
9
0
 -

 I
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
P

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 E

n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
ts

1
0
0
,0

0
0

-2
4
,0

0
0
 

7
6
,0

0
0

1
5
,4

8
5

7
6
,0

0
0

0
2
4
,0

0
0

G
R

B
A

1
9
4
 -

 G
u
ild

h
a
ll 

R
e
n
e
w

a
ls

1
3
2
,0

0
0

3
6
,0

0
0

1
6
8
,0

0
0

1
1
8
,1

3
5

1
6
8
,0

0
0

0
3
9
,0

0
0

G
R

B
A

1
9
6
 -

 G
ro

s
v
e
n
o
r/

G
re

y
fr

ia
rs

 -
 S

ta
g
e
c
o
a
c
h
 R

e
lo

c
a
ti
o
n

0
3
,0

0
0
,0

0
0

3
,0

0
0
,0

0
0

0
3
,0

0
0
,0

0
0

0
0

G
G

B
A

1
9
7
 -

 D
e
la

p
re

 A
b
b
e
y
 R

e
s
to

ra
ti
o
n
 M

in
o
r 

P
ro

je
c
ts

1
0
0
,0

0
0

-9
0
,0

0
0
 

1
0
,0

0
0

2
8

1
0
,0

0
0

0
9
0
,0

0
0

G
R

B
A

3
6
8
 -

 U
p
to

n
 P

a
rk

 P
e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
 &

 C
y
c
le

 B
ri
d
g
e

0
2
0
8
,0

1
1

2
0
8
,0

1
1

2
0
4
,2

5
9

2
0
8
,0

1
1

0
7
8
,4

0
0

G
R

B
A

3
8
5
 -

 T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 E

n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
ts

0
5
0
,0

0
0

5
0
,0

0
0

0
5
0
,0

0
0

0
5
0
,0

0
0

G
R

B
A

8
8
7
 -

 G
ro

s
v
e
n
o
r 

G
re

y
fr

ia
rs

 C
a
r 

P
a
rk

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
W

o
rk

s
0

7
3
,0

0
0

7
3
,0

0
0

7
5
,3

1
1

7
3
,0

0
0

2
,3

1
1

5
,0

0
0

G
A

B
A

8
8
9
 -

 M
a
y
o
rh

o
ld

 C
a
r 

P
a
rk

 -
  
D

ra
in

a
g
e
 W

o
rk

s
0

5
,0

0
0

5
,0

0
0

3
,2

7
5

5
,0

0
0

0
7
5
,0

0
0

G
R

B
A

8
9
1
 -

 B
u
s
 I
n
te

rc
h
a
n
g
e

6
,3

8
6
,0

0
0

-5
,1

7
0
,0

0
0
 

1
,2

1
6
,0

0
0

8
4
9
,6

4
1

1
,2

1
6
,0

0
0

0
4
,2

8
4
,0

0
0

G
R

B
A

8
9
2
 -

 U
rg

e
n
t 
L
if
t 
R

e
n
e
w

a
ls

1
8
1
,5

0
0

-5
0
,0

0
0
 

1
3
1
,5

0
0

0
1
3
1
,5

0
0

0
5
0
,0

0
0

G
R

B
A

8
9
4
 -

 M
o
u
n
ts

 B
a
th

s
 R

o
o
f

1
5
0
,2

0
0

2
5
,2

0
0

1
7
5
,4

0
0

1
7
1
,0

2
5

1
7
5
,4

0
0

0
0

G
G

T
o

ta
l 

fo
r 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

R
e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

7
,4

8
1

,7
0

0
-1

,0
2

1
,1

2
9

 
6

,4
6

0
,5

7
1

2
,5

0
1

,2
9

2
6

,4
6

7
,2

4
1

8
,9

8
1

6
,2

6
6

,5
8

9
G

R

F
ra

n
 R

o
d

g
e
rs

 (
F

R
2
)

B
K

0
1
0
 -

 C
o
u
n
tr

y
w

id
e
 C

lim
a
te

 F
ri
e
n
d
ly

 C
o
m

m
m

u
n
it
ie

s
0

9
8
,5

1
1

9
8
,5

1
1

5
1
,8

9
4

9
8
,5

1
1

0
0

G
G

B
K

0
1
3
 -

 E
m

p
ty

 H
o
m

e
s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
0

2
0
0
,0

0
0

2
0
0
,0

0
0

6
0

2
0
0
,0

0
0

0
4
3
2
,0

9
0

G
R

B
K

0
1
4
 -

 C
B

L
 S

u
b
-r

e
g
io

n
a
l 
s
c
h
e
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

G
G

B
K

0
1
5
 -

 D
F

G
s
 O

w
n
e
r 

O
c
c
u
p
ie

rs
1
,4

7
5
,0

0
0

7
2
8
,9

7
2

2
,2

0
3
,9

7
2

2
,2

5
4
,4

8
3

2
,2

5
6
,3

7
3

5
2
,4

0
1

0

A

G

B
K

0
2
9
 -

 H
o
t 
P

ro
p
e
rt

y
 3

0
1
,3

9
2

1
,3

9
2

-2
,4

8
2
 

1
,3

9
2

0
0

G
G

B
K

0
3
0
 -

 H
e
a
ts

tr
e
e
ts

0
0

0
-5

6
 

0
0

0
G

G

B
K

0
4
3
 -

 E
c
to

n
 L

a
n
e
 R

e
m

e
d
ia

l 
W

o
rk

s
 2

0
1
1
,6

2
0

1
1
,6

2
0

1
1
,6

2
0

1
1
,6

2
0

0
0

G
G

B
K

0
4
4
 -

 G
O

E
M

 D
e
c
e
n
t 
H

o
m

e
s
 A

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e

0
1
5
3
,6

0
2

1
5
3
,6

0
2

1
1
4
,7

9
3

1
5
3
,6

0
2

0
0

G
G

B
K

0
5
0
 -

 W
ra

p
p
e
d
 U

p
 S

c
h
e
m

e
0

5
0
,0

0
0

5
0
,0

0
0

2
5
,9

4
7

5
0
,0

0
0

0
0

G
G

B
K

0
5
1
 -

 F
u
e
l 
P

o
v
e
rt

y
 F

u
n
d
 C

o
u
n
ty

 W
id

e
0

5
0
4
,0

0
0

5
0
4
,0

0
0

3
9
,0

8
1

5
0
4
,0

0
0

0
0

G
G

T
o

ta
l 

fo
r 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 H
o

u
s

in
g

1
,4

7
5

,0
0

0
1

,7
4

8
,0

9
7

3
,2

2
3

,0
9

7
2

,4
9

5
,3

4
1

3
,2

7
5

,4
9

8
5

2
,4

0
1

4
3

2
,0

9
0

A
A

Is
a
b

e
ll
 P

ro
c
te

r 
(I

P
1
)

B
A

3
8
3
 -

 C
in

e
p
o
d
 -

 R
o
y
a
l 
&

 D
e
rn

g
a
te

 T
h
e
a
tr

e
0

3
5
0
,0

0
0

3
5
0
,0

0
0

1
0
2
,1

9
4

3
5
0
,0

0
0

0
0

G
G

T
o

ta
l 

fo
r 

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

o
f 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

0
3

5
0

,0
0

0
3

5
0

,0
0

0
1

0
2

,1
9

4
3

5
0

,0
0

0
0

0
G

G

J
u

li
e
 S

e
d

d
o

n
 (

J
S

1
4
)

B
A

1
4
4
 -

 P
la

y
b
u
ild

e
r 

- 
D

a
lli

n
g
to

n
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

0
3
0
0

0
0

G
G

B
A

1
6
7
 -

 I
 L

o
v
e
 M

y
 P

a
rk

s
0

1
5
,2

5
4

1
5
,2

5
4

1
1
,4

4
1

1
5
,2

5
4

0
1
7
,0

0
0

G
R

T
o

ta
l 

fo
r 

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

o
f 

C
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
0

1
5

,5
5

4
1

5
,5

5
4

1
1

,4
4

1
1

5
,5

5
4

0
1

7
,0

0
0

G
R

M
a
ri

o
n

 G
o

o
d

m
a
n

 (
M

G
3
)

B
A

1
1
1
 -

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 H

u
b
 G

IS
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

G
G

G
F

 C
A

P
I
T

A
L

 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 3
 G

F
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
B

u
d
g
e
t 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 -

 P
e
ri
o
d
 1

1
 2

0
1
2
-1

3
.x

ls
x

C
F

R
0
 G

F
P

a
g
e
 1

 o
f 

2
P

re
p
a
re

d
 b

y
 F

in
a
n
c
e

0
9
/0

5
/2

0
1
3

15



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T

S
 (

C
A

P
IT

A
L

) 
: 

(C
o

s
t 

C
e
n

tr
e
 &

 H
e
a
d

 o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
)

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 Y

E
A

R
 2

0
1
2
/2

0
1
3

P
E

R
IO

D
 1

1
 (

F
e
b

ru
a
ry

 2
0
1
3
)

2
0
1
2
0
1

2
0
1
2
0
0
-2

0
1
2
1
1

2
0
1
2
0
0
-2

0
1
2
1
1

2
0
1
2
0
0
-2

0
1
2
1
1

2
0
1
2
1
1

2
0
1

2
1
1

2
0
1
2
1
1

P
ro

je
c
t 

C
o

d
e
 &

 P
ro

je
c
t 

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

A
p

p
ro

v
e
d

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

F
e
b

ru
a
ry

 2
0
1
2

A
p

p
ro

v
e
d

 

C
h

a
n

g
e
s

In
 Y

e
a
r

L
a
te

s
t 

A
p

p
ro

v
e
d

 

B
u

d
g

e
ts

Y
T

D
 A

c
tu

a
l 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

Y
e
a
r 

E
n

d
 S

p
e
n

d

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

-

U
n

d
e
rs

p
e
n

d
 /
 

+
O

v
e
rs

p
e
n

d
 f

o
r 

Y
e
a
r 

E
n

d

B
u

d
g

e
t

C
a
rr

ie
d

F
o

rw
a
rd

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 

R
A

G

C
a
rr

y
 

F
o

rw
a
rd

 

R
A

G

A
B

C
=

A
+

B
D

E
F

=
E

-C
G

£
£

£
£

£
£

£

G
F

 C
A

P
I
T

A
L

 

B
A

1
5
7
 -

 C
O

M
; 
T

e
le

p
h
o
n
y
 (

V
o
IP

)
0

7
,1

0
8

7
,1

0
8

-1
,0

1
1
 

7
,1

0
8

0
0

G
G

B
A

1
6
4
 -

 C
O

M
; 
IT

 E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 
N

e
w

 w
a
y
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g

0
6
5
,9

0
0

6
5
,9

0
0

6
5
,0

0
0

6
5
,9

0
0

0
0

G
G

B
A

1
7
3
 -

 M
u
lt
i-
F

u
n
c
ti
o
n
 D

e
v
ic

e
s
 (

M
F

D
's

)
0

0
0

0
0

0
2
9
,6

2
8

G
G

B
A

1
9
2
 -

 C
o
n
te

n
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
S

y
s
te

m
 U

p
g
ra

d
e
 f

o
r 

W
e
b
s
it
e
s

0
3
,6

5
0

3
,6

5
0

3
,1

9
9

3
,6

5
0

0
0

G
G

B
A

1
9
3
 -

 R
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 
- 

N
o
rt

h
a
m

p
to

n
 M

u
s
e
u
m

 a
n
d
 A

rt
 G

a
lle

ry
0

0
0

-3
2
5
 

9
,9

3
4

9
,9

3
4

0
G

G

B
A

2
0
7
 -

 I
T

 I
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 -

 S
e
rv

e
rs

 a
n
d
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 S
to

ra
g
e

1
6
2
,0

0
0

0
1
6
2
,0

0
0

1
6
0
,3

4
3

1
6
2
,0

0
0

0
0

G
G

B
A

3
8
4
 -

 C
u
lt
u
ra

l 
Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

S
tr

e
e
t 
&

 B
u
ild

in
g
 S

ig
n
a
g
e

0
5
0
,0

0
0

5
0
,0

0
0

0
5
0
,0

0
0

0
0

G
G

B
A

7
4
3
 -

 E
le

c
tr

o
n
ic

 R
e
c
o
rd

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

0
5
,9

1
1

5
,9

1
1

0
5
,9

1
1

0
0

G
G

B
A

7
6
4
 -

 O
n
e
 S

to
p
 S

h
o
p
, 
C

R
M

0
2
9
,9

6
6

2
9
,9

6
6

0
2
9
,9

6
6

0
0

G
G

B
A

7
8
6
 -

 D
a
ta

 N
e
tw

o
rk

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

0
2
9
,3

3
4

2
9
,3

3
4

-8
,8

7
1
 

2
9
,3

3
4

0
5
0
,0

0
0

G
R

B
A

8
0
8
 -

 I
T

 N
e
tw

o
rk

 R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
0

3
4
,2

3
6

3
4
,2

3
6

5
,6

6
7

3
4
,2

3
6

0
0

G
G

B
A

8
9
3
 -

 M
ic

ro
s
o
ft

 O
ff

ic
e
 2

0
1
0
 U

p
g
ra

d
e

1
9
5
,2

0
0

-1
6
5
,0

0
0
 

3
0
,2

0
0

2
9
,8

1
5

3
0
,2

0
0

0
1
4
5
,0

0
0

G
R

T
o

ta
l 

fo
r 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
&

 C
u

lt
u

ra
l 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

3
5

7
,2

0
0

6
1

,1
0

5
4

1
8

,3
0

5
2

5
3

,8
1

8
4

2
8

,2
3

9
9

,9
3

4
2

2
4

,6
2

8
G

R

N
ic

c
i 
M

a
rz

e
c
 (

N
M

3
)

B
A

3
5
6
 -

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
s
 R

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t

1
5
,0

0
0

5
,1

4
5

2
0
,1

4
5

2
2
,8

0
1

2
0
,1

4
5

0
0

G
G

T
o

ta
l 

fo
r 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

1
5

,0
0

0
5

,1
4

5
2

0
,1

4
5

2
2

,8
0

1
2

0
,1

4
5

0
0

G
G

R
o

b
in

 B
a
te

s
 (

R
B

4
)

B
A

1
4
5
 -

 C
lif

to
n
v
ill

e
 M

o
v
e
; 
N

e
w

 w
a
y
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g

0
5
5
,2

4
6

5
5
,2

4
6

2
8
,7

2
3

5
5
,2

4
6

0
0

G
G

T
o

ta
l 

fo
r 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

0
5

5
,2

4
6

5
5

,2
4

6
2

8
,7

2
3

5
5

,2
4

6
0

0
G

G

B
A

1
6
5
 -

 C
O

M
; 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

0
9
8
,0

7
1

9
8
,0

7
1

0
9
8
,0

7
1

0
0

G
G

B
A

2
0
9
 -

 H
o
s
te

d
 D

e
b
it
 a

n
d
 C

re
d
it
 C

a
rd

 P
a
y
m

e
n
ts

0
3
9
,1

7
3

3
9
,1

7
3

3
9
,1

7
3

3
9
,1

7
3

0
0

G
G

B
A

6
4
6
 -

 R
e
-f

u
rb

is
h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 G

re
a
t 
H

a
ll 

k
it
c
h
e
n

0
6
0
,0

0
0

6
0
,0

0
0

0
6
0
,0

0
0

0
6
1
,5

0
0

G
R

T
o

ta
l 

fo
r 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 &
 R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

s
0

1
9

7
,2

4
4

1
9

7
,2

4
4

3
9

,1
7

3
1

9
7

,2
4

4
0

6
1

,5
0

0
G

R

S
u

s
a
n

 B
ri

d
g

e
 (

S
B

1
1
)

B
A

2
1
0
 -

 J
e
ff

re
y
 R

o
o
m

 A
u
d
io

 a
n
d
 V

is
u
a
l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

0
6
,5

3
9

6
,5

3
9

4
,2

2
8

6
,5

3
9

0
0

G
G

B
A

8
8
3
 -

 P
la

n
n
in

g
 I
T

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 (
H

P
D

G
)

0
2
,2

7
8

2
,2

7
8

2
,2

7
8

2
,2

7
8

0
1
9
1
,3

3
5

G
R

T
o

ta
l 

fo
r 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

P
la

n
n

in
g

0
8

,8
1

7
8

,8
1

7
6

,5
0

6
8

,8
1

7
0

1
9

1
,3

3
5

G
R

S
te

v
e
 E

ls
e
y
 (

S
E

3
)

B
A

2
0
8
 -

 E
a
s
tf

ie
ld

 P
a
rk

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 P

a
rk

 E
n
tr

a
n
c
e

0
0

0
-1

4
0
 

0
0

0
G

G

B
A

2
1
1
 -

 E
x
te

n
s
io

n
 o

f 
D

u
s
to

n
 C

e
m

e
te

ry
0

2
,0

0
0

2
,0

0
0

2
,0

0
0

2
,0

0
0

0
4
0
,4

5
0

G
R

B
A

8
7
2
 -

 N
ig

h
t 
S

a
fe

 &
 T

a
rg

e
t 
H

a
rd

e
n
in

g
 -

 S
S

N
P

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
3
,8

2
5

G
G

B
A

8
9
0
 -

 C
e
n
tr

a
l 
M

u
s
e
u
m

 -
 B

o
ile

r 
R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t

3
5
,0

0
0

0
3
5
,0

0
0

3
4
,8

0
0

3
5
,0

0
0

0
0

G
G

B
A

8
9
5
 -

 A
llo

tm
e
n
t 
P

ro
v
is

io
n

1
0
0
,0

0
0

-1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

0
6
0
5

0
0

1
0
0
,0

0
0

G
G

B
A

8
9
6
 -

 G
u
ild

h
a
ll 

L
o
ft

 I
n
s
u
la

ti
o
n
 S

a
lix

 p
ro

je
c
t

0
4
,8

4
2

4
,8

4
2

0
4
,8

4
2

0
0

G
G

B
A

8
9
7
 -

 G
ro

s
v
e
n
o
r 

C
a
r 

P
a
rk

 T
5
 L

ig
h
ti
n
g
 U

p
g
ra

d
e
s

0
4
0
,1

1
7

4
0
,1

1
7

3
2
,5

0
3

4
0
,1

1
7

0
0

G
G

B
A

8
9
8
 -

 S
t 
M

ic
h
a
e
ls

 C
a
r 

P
a
rk

 L
e
d
 L

ig
h
ti
n
g

0
8
8
,8

3
9

8
8
,8

3
9

7
1
,6

2
8

8
8
,8

3
9

0
0

G
G

T
o

ta
l 

fo
r 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

P
u

b
li

c
 P

ro
te

c
ti

o
n

1
3

5
,0

0
0

3
5

,7
9

8
1

7
0

,7
9

8
1

4
1

,3
9

5
1

7
0

,7
9

8
0

1
5

4
,2

7
5

G
R

T
O

T
A

L
S

9
,4

6
3

,9
0

0
1

,4
5

5
,8

7
7

1
0

,9
1

9
,7

7
7

5
,6

0
2

,6
8

5
1

0
,9

8
8

,7
8

2
7

1
,3

1
6

7
,3

4
7

,4
1

7
A

R

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 3
 G

F
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
B

u
d
g
e
t 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 -

 P
e
ri
o
d
 1

1
 2

0
1
2
-1

3
.x

ls
x

C
F

R
0
 G

F
P

a
g
e
 2

 o
f 

2
P

re
p
a
re

d
 b

y
 F

in
a
n
c
e

0
9
/0

5
/2

0
1
3

16



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T

S
 (

C
A

P
IT

A
L

) 
: 

(C
o

s
t 

C
e
n

tr
e
 &

 H
e
a
d

 o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
)

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 Y

E
A

R
 2

0
1
2
/2

0
1
3

P
E

R
IO

D
 1

1
 (

F
e
b

ru
a
ry

 2
0
1
3
)

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

2
0
1
2
0
1

2
0
1
2
0
0
-2

0
1
2
1
1

2
0
1
2
0
0
-2

0
1
2
1
1

2
0
1
2
0
0
-2

0
1
2
1
1

2
0
1
2
1
1

2
0
1

2
1
1

2
0
1
2
1
1

P
ro

je
c
t 

C
o

d
e
 &

 P
ro

je
c
t 

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

A
p

p
ro

v
e
d

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

F
e
b

ru
a
ry

 2
0
1
2

A
p

p
ro

v
e
d

 

C
h

a
n

g
e
s

In
 Y

e
a
r

L
a
te

s
t 

A
p

p
ro

v
e
d

 

B
u

d
g

e
ts

Y
T

D
 A

c
tu

a
l 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

Y
e
a
r 

E
n

d
 S

p
e
n

d

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

-

U
n

d
e
rs

p
e
n

d
 /

 

+
O

v
e
rs

p
e
n

d
 f

o
r 

Y
e
a
r 

E
n

d

B
u

d
g

e
t

C
a
rr

ie
d

F
o

rw
a
rd

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 

R
A

G

C
a
rr

y
 

F
o

rw
a
rd

 

R
A

G

A
B

C
=

A
+

B
D

E
F

=
E

-C
G

£
£

£
£

£
£

£

F
ra

n
 R

o
d

g
e
rs

 (
F

R
2
)

B
H

0
0
6
 -

 W
o
o
d
s
id

e
 W

a
y
 N

e
w

 B
u
ild

0
1
5
,9

6
6

1
5
,9

6
6

1
5
,9

9
6

1
5
,9

6
6

0
0

G
G

B
H

3
6
6
 -

 S
h
e
lt
e
re

d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

1
,0

0
0
,0

0
0

-6
5
0
,0

0
0
 

3
5
0
,0

0
0

3
3
4
,9

9
8

3
5
0
,0

0
0

0
6
5
0
,0

0
0

G
R

B
H

3
6
7
 -

 I
T

 C
a
p
it
a
l

2
0
0
,0

0
0

-1
7
0
,0

0
0
 

3
0
,0

0
0

9
,4

8
6

3
0
,0

0
0

0
1
7
0
,0

0
0

G
R

T
o

ta
l 
fo

r 
H

e
a

d
 o

f 
S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 H

o
u

s
in

g
1

,2
0

0
,0

0
0

-8
0

4
,0

3
4

 
3

9
5

,9
6

6
3

6
0

,4
7

9
3

9
5

,9
6

6
0

8
2

0
,0

0
0

G
R

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

L
a
n

d
lo

rd
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

M
a
ry

 W
o

o
d

) 
(H

O
L

S
)

B
H

0
0
3
 -

 G
a
ra

g
e
s
 R

o
o
fs

 &
 D

o
o
rs

 R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t

4
0
,0

0
0

2
5
,2

0
1

6
5
,2

0
1

4
8
,0

7
2

6
5
,2

0
1

0
0

G
G

B
H

0
0
9
 -

 F
ir
e
 S

a
fe

ty
 W

o
rk

s
 -

 c
o
m

m
u
n
a
l 
a
re

a
s

1
5
0
,0

0
0

0
1
5
0
,0

0
0

1
3
4
,3

0
7

1
5
0
,0

0
0

0
0

G
G

B
H

0
1
1
 -

 C
a
p
it
a
l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

W
o
rk

s
3
0
0
,0

0
0

-1
9
8
,4

0
2
 

1
0
1
,5

9
8

3
5
0

1
0
1
,5

9
8

0
2
0
0
,0

0
0

G
R

B
H

0
1
4
 -

 E
s
ta

te
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

1
5
0
,0

0
0

1
9
8
,2

2
4

3
4
8
,2

2
4

4
9
6

3
4
8
,2

2
4

0
0

G
G

B
H

0
1
9
 -

 W
in

d
o
w

 R
e
s
tr

ic
to

rs
0

2
6
,2

8
3

2
6
,2

8
3

0
2
6
,2

8
3

0
0

G
G

B
H

0
2
0
 -

 P
e
ri
o
d
ic

a
l 
E

le
c
tr

ic
a
l 
W

o
rk

s
1
2
5
,0

0
0

6
0
,4

8
9

1
8
5
,4

8
9

1
4
4
,7

0
3

1
8
5
,4

8
9

0
0

G
G

B
H

0
2
1
 -

 N
e
w

 C
o
m

m
u
n
a
l 
B

o
ile

rs
0

0
0

3
9
8

3
9
8

3
9
8

0
G

G

B
H

0
2
2
 -

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 E

n
e
rg

y
 S

a
v
in

g
s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 (

C
E

S
P

)
7
5
0
,0

0
0

2
,2

2
6
,8

2
8

2
,9

7
6
,8

2
8

2
,4

1
6
,2

0
1

2
,9

7
6
,8

2
8

0
0

G
G

B
H

0
2
3
 -

 E
x
te

rn
a
l 
G

a
s
 S

u
p
p
ly

 R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t

0
5
,5

5
0

5
,5

5
0

2
,6

7
0

5
,5

5
0

0
0

G
G

B
H

1
4
0
 -

 D
is

a
b
le

d
 G

ra
n
t 

- 
M

a
jo

r 
R

e
p
a
ir
s

1
,0

0
0
,0

0
0

2
0
0
,0

0
0

1
,2

0
0
,0

0
0

1
,2

6
3
,0

4
4

1
,3

6
6
,9

1
4

1
6
6
,9

1
4

0
R

G

B
H

3
0
2
 -

 M
in

o
r 

A
d
a
p
ta

ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

P
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 D

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s

1
4
0
,0

0
0

3
0
,0

0
0

1
7
0
,0

0
0

1
6
7
,4

9
3

1
7
0
,0

0
0

0
0

G
G

B
H

3
0
4
 -

 C
o
m

p
le

te
 R

o
o
fs

4
0
0
,0

0
0

2
7
5
,1

1
0

6
7
5
,1

1
0

3
1
6
,4

9
7

6
7
5
,1

1
0

0
2
1
6
,0

0
0

G
R

B
H

3
0
5
 -

 S
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l 
R

e
p
a
ir
s

4
0
0
,0

0
0

0
4
0
0
,0

0
0

4
4
2
,0

7
4

4
4
2
,0

7
4

4
2
,0

7
4

0
G

G

B
H

3
1
7
 -

 D
e
c
e
n
t 

H
o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 P

o
o
r 

C
o
n
d
it
io

n
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

1
0
,0

0
0
,0

0
0

7
,9

4
5
,0

0
0

1
7
,9

4
5
,0

0
0

1
4
,2

7
9
,5

1
1

1
7
,9

4
5
,0

0
0

0
0

G
G

B
H

3
2
1
 -

 D
o
o
r 

&
 W

in
d
o
w

 R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t

3
0
,0

0
0

3
,4

9
5

3
3
,4

9
5

2
3
,4

6
7

3
3
,4

9
5

0
0

G
G

B
H

3
2
4
 -

 G
a
s
 A

p
p
lia

n
c
e
 R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

- 
P

la
n
n
e
d
 P

tn
rs

h
ip

7
0
0
,0

0
0

0
7
0
0
,0

0
0

5
4
1
,4

8
1

7
0
0
,0

0
0

0
0

G
G

B
H

3
2
5
 -

 G
a
s
 A

p
p
lia

n
c
e
 R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

- 
R

e
s
p
o
n
s
iv

e
5
0
0
,0

0
0

0
5
0
0
,0

0
0

5
0
0
,1

9
5

5
0
0
,1

9
5

1
9
5

0
G

G

B
H

3
2
9
 -

 A
s
b
e
s
to

s
 R

e
m

e
d
ia

l 
A

c
ti
o
n

1
0
0
,0

0
0

0
1
0
0
,0

0
0

1
0
4
,2

5
5

1
0
4
,2

5
5

4
,2

5
5

0
G

G

B
H

3
3
8
 -

 C
a
p
it
a
l 
V

o
id

s
1
,0

0
0
,0

0
0

8
9
,5

5
7

1
,0

8
9
,5

5
7

1
9
4
,2

2
2

1
,0

8
9
,5

5
7

0
0

G
G

B
H

3
4
5
 -

 K
it
c
h
e
n
 r

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t

2
0
0
,0

0
0

4
6
,6

6
6

2
4
6
,6

6
6

2
0
2
,9

7
0

2
4
6
,6

6
6

0
0

G
G

B
H

3
5
1
 -

 D
o
o
r 

E
n
tr

y
 U

p
d
a
te

s
9
0
,0

0
0

4
5
,1

1
9

1
3
5
,1

1
9

9
5
,3

1
1

1
3
5
,1

1
9

0
0

G
G

B
H

3
5
4
 -

 L
if
t 

R
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t

0
1
4
,1

1
9

1
4
,1

1
9

1
6
,0

7
1

1
6
,0

7
1

1
,9

5
2

0
G

G

B
H

3
6
4
 -

 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 l
a
n
d

1
4
0
,0

0
0

1
8
7
,5

2
1

3
2
7
,5

2
1

2
6
3
,0

5
6

3
2
7
,5

2
1

0
0

G
G

B
H

3
6
5
 -

 W
a
lk

w
a
y
s

1
0
0
,0

0
0

0
1
0
0
,0

0
0

0
1
0
0
,0

0
0

0
0

G
G

B
H

3
6
8
 -

 C
o
m

m
u
n
a
l 
A

re
a
 U

p
g
ra

d
e
s

2
0
0
,0

0
0

0
2
0
0
,0

0
0

5
,6

6
6

2
0
0
,0

0
0

0
0

G
G

T
o

ta
l 
fo

r 
H

e
a

d
 o

f 
L

a
n

d
lo

rd
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
1

6
,5

1
5

,0
0

0
1

1
,1

8
0

,7
6

0
2

7
,6

9
5

,7
6

0
2

1
,1

6
2

,5
0

8
2

7
,9

1
1

,5
4

7
2

1
5

,7
8

7
4

1
6

,0
0

0
R

G

L
e
s
le

y
 W

e
a
ri

n
g

 (
L

W
3
)

B
H

3
7
0
 -

 R
e
p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
 o

f 
F

o
rm

e
r 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

H
o
u
s
e
s

0
5
0
0
,0

0
0

5
0
0
,0

0
0

0
5
0
0
,0

0
0

0
0

G
G

B
H

3
7
1
 -

 O
ff

 G
ri
d
 t

o
 R

e
n
e
w

a
b
le

 T
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
ie

s
0

1
6
2
,2

5
4

1
6
2
,2

5
4

1
,0

5
9

1
6
2
,2

5
4

0
0

G
G

T
o

ta
l 
fo

r 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
H

o
u

s
in

g
0

6
6

2
,2

5
4

6
6

2
,2

5
4

1
,0

5
9

6
6

2
,2

5
4

0
0

G
G

T
O

T
A

L
S

1
7

,7
1

5
,0

0
0

1
1

,0
3

8
,9

8
0

2
8

,7
5

3
,9

8
0

2
1

,5
2

4
,0

4
6

2
8

,9
6

9
,7

6
7

2
1

5
,7

8
7

1
,2

3
6

,0
0

0
R

G

H
R

A
 C

A
P

I
T

A
L

 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 4

 H
R

A
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 -

 P
e

ri
o

d
 1

1
 2

0
1

2
-1

3
.x

ls
x

C
F

R
0

 H
R

A
P

a
g

e
 1

 o
f 
1

P
re

p
a

re
d

 b
y
 F

in
a

n
c
e

0
9

/0
5

/2
0

1
3

17



Appendix 5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Notes: 

§ Income for 2012/13 was £166k lower than budgeted,(Budget £2,799k), and 
£274k less than in 2011/12. 

§ The volume of tickets sold during 2012/13 was 61k higher than in 2011/12. 
§ St John’s Surface Car Park: closure was effective from 15 June. 
§ Budgeted Income for 2013/14 £2,599k. 

.  

18



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 6

 

A
u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 A

g
e
 d

e
b
t 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 
 

1
 o

f 
2

 

M
a
n
a
g
e
d
 D

e
b
t 

A
n
a
ly

s
is

 -
 R

o
lli

n
g
 Y

e
a
r 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 i
n
to

 2
0

1
2
/1

3
 

  
A

P
R

 
M

A
Y

 
J
U

N
 

J
U

L
 

A
U

G
 

S
E

P
 

O
C

T
 

N
O

V
 

D
E

C
 

J
A

N
 

F
E

B
 

M
A

R
 

T
O

T
A

L
 

A
R

R
E

A
R

S
 

1
5
,4

3
1
,5

2
5

 
1
4
,9

9
6
,3

7
0

 
1
5
,7

2
3
,2

3
6

 
1
5
,4

4
0
,9

0
0

 
1
4
,8

6
9
,0

6
7

 
1
4
,5

4
2
,3

9
0

 
1
4
,0

4
0
,2

6
1

 
1
2
,9

7
5
,6

0
1

 
1
2
,4

2
7
,8

5
2

 
1
2
,1

0
8
,2

9
9

 
1
1
,8

6
3
,0

7
0

 
1
2
,6

0
5
,4

6
5

 

A
w

a
it

in
g

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 
6
0
3
,4

6
4

 
5
9
7
,5

5
7

 
1
,6

0
3
,1

4
4

 
1
,0

6
7
,4

9
4

 
1
,1

9
8
,7

5
9

 
1
,3

1
9
,2

3
2

 
1
,0

0
3
,2

1
4

 
5
7
7
,2

2
3

 
6
9
1
,2

2
7

 
6
8
0
,3

6
3

 
8
3
7
,7

4
2

 
6
3
5
,6

2
7

 

D
e
b

t 
in

 
P

ro
g

re
s
s

 
1
4
,8

2
8
,0

6
1

 
1
4
,3

9
8
,8

1
3

 
1
4
,1

2
0
,0

9
2

 
1
4
,3

4
3
,4

0
6

 
1
3
,6

7
0
,3

0
7

 
1
3
,2

2
3
,1

5
8

 
1
3
,0

3
7
,0

4
7

 
1
2
,3

9
8
,3

7
8

 
1
1
,7

3
6
,6

2
5

 
1
1
,4

2
7
,9

3
6

 
1
1
,0

2
5
,3

2
7

 
1
1
,9

6
9
,8

3
8

 

%
 I

n
a
c
ti

v
e
 

d
e
b

t 
[P

I]
 

3
.9

1
%

 
3
.9

8
%

 
1
0
.2

0
%

 
6
.9

1
%

 
8
.0

6
%

 
9
.0

7
%

 
7
.1

5
%

 
4
.4

5
%

 
5
.5

6
%

 
5
.6

2
%

 
7
.0

6
%

 
5
.0

4
%

 

C
T

A
X

 
7
,6

9
8
,0

9
8

 
7
,9

1
3
,3

9
2

 
7
,5

9
0
,7

1
6

 
7
,2

9
0
,8

0
9

 
6
,9

9
5
,8

8
8

 
6
,7

4
8
,4

6
2

 
6
,8

1
6
,5

8
1

 
6
,0

7
9
,4

3
6

 
5
,8

5
1
,3

3
8

 
5
,6

2
8
,7

6
3

 
5
,4

5
6
,8

6
7

 
6
,0

9
0
,1

8
8

 

In
a
c
ti
v
e
  

 
1
3
6
,2

6
0

 
1
4
2
,4

8
8

 
1
1
8
,9

2
7

 
1
0
3
,4

6
3

 
1
5
5
,2

0
1

 
1
9
0
,9

8
8

 
6
1
,7

1
8

 
8
7
,9

2
6

 
1
1
9
,6

4
5

 
1
1
9
,5

9
0

 
7
4
,4

4
4

 
1
1
1
,5

2
8

 

In
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

7
,5

6
1
,8

3
8

 
7
,7

7
0
,9

0
4

 
7
,4

7
1
,7

8
9

 
7
,1

8
7
,3

4
6

 
6
,8

4
0
,6

8
7

 
6
,5

5
7
,4

7
4

 
6
,7

5
4
,8

6
3

 
5
,9

9
1
,5

1
0

 
5
,7

3
1
,6

9
3

 
5
,5

0
9
,1

7
3

 
5
,3

8
2
,4

2
3

 
5
,9

7
8
,6

6
0
  

In
a
c
ti
v
e
 

d
e
b
t 

1
.7

7
%

 
1
.8

0
%

 
1
.5

7
%

 
1
.4

2
%

 
2
.2

2
%

 
2
.8

3
%

 
0
.0

9
%

 
1
.4

5
%

 
2
.0

4
%

 
2
.1

2
%

 
1
.3

6
%

 
1
.8

3
%

 

N
N

D
R

 
2
,5

1
4
,1

4
4

 
1
,8

9
6
,8

7
3

 
1
,7

0
9
,3

9
4

 
1
,6

1
8
,1

4
1

 
1
,4

5
5
,8

5
9

 
1
,4

5
4
,1

6
9

 
1
,1

9
0
,2

0
2

 
1
,0

4
8
,0

1
1

 
7
9
2
,3

0
3

 
7
1
1
,3

2
5

 
8
1
7
,5

3
9

 
7
7
6
,7

8
2

 

In
a
c
ti
v
e
  

 
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

In
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

2
,5

1
4
,1

4
4

 
1
,8

9
6
,8

7
3

 
1
,7

0
9
,3

9
4

 
1
,6

1
8
,1

4
1

 
1
,4

5
5
,8

5
9

 
1
,4

5
4
,1

6
9

 
1
,1

9
0
,2

0
2

 
1
,0

4
8
,0

1
1

 
7
9
2
,3

0
3

 
7
1
1
,3

2
5

 
8
1
7
,5

3
9

 
7
7
6
,7

8
2

 

In
a
c
ti
v
e
 

d
e
b
t 

0
.0

0
%

 
0
.0

0
%

 
0
.0

0
%

 
0
.0

0
%

 
0
.0

0
%

 
0
.0

0
%

 
0
.0

0
%

 
0
.0

0
%

 
0
.0

0
%

 
0
.0

0
%

 
0
.0

0
%

 
0
.0

0
%

 

F
T

A
 

1
,1

7
6
,3

3
2

 
1
,1

4
8
,8

8
7

 
1
,1

1
2
,7

1
2

 
1
,0

9
3
,9

2
6

 
1
,0

9
8
,7

7
3

 
1
,1

0
1
,4

2
4

 
1
,1

4
1
,2

7
4

 
1
,0

8
7
,9

1
1

 
1
,1

0
8
,1

0
5

 
1
,0

8
3
,0

3
8

 
8
1
7
,9

8
0

 
8
1
4
,5

0
3

 

In
a
c
ti
v
e
  

 
1
1
3
,8

0
2

 
1
2
5
,6

1
2

 
1
3
1
,6

3
8

 
2
4
,4

5
1

 
8
8
,5

4
2

 
8
7
,5

6
8

 
9
3
,8

9
5

 
4
1
,5

4
0

 
7
8
,2

4
4

 
1
4
,5

9
4

 
3
4
,9

7
8

 
3
0
,0

1
6

 

In
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

1
,0

6
2
,5

3
0

 
1
,0

2
3
,2

7
5

 
9
8
1
,0

7
4

 
1
,0

3
9
,4

7
6

 
1
,0

1
0
,2

3
1

 
1
,0

1
3
,8

5
6

 
1
,0

4
7
,3

7
9

 
1
,0

4
6
,3

7
1

 
1
,0

2
9
,8

6
1

 
1
,0

6
8
,4

4
4

 
7
8
3
,0

0
2

 
7
8
4
,4

8
7

 

In
a
c
ti
v
e
 

d
e
b
t 

9
.6

7
%

 
1
0
.9

3
%

 
1
1
.8

3
%

 
2
.2

3
%

 
8
.0

6
%

 
7
.9

5
%

 
8
.2

2
%

 
3
.8

2
%

 
7
.0

6
%

 
1
.3

5
%

 
4
.2

8
%

 
3
.6

9
%

 

H
B

O
P

 
4
,0

4
2
,9

5
1

 
4
,0

3
7
,2

1
8

 
4
,0

6
2
,7

8
4

 
4
,0

4
2
,5

2
4

 
4
,1

3
9
,8

0
5

 
4
,0

9
0
,1

1
5

 
4
,0

6
2
,4

8
7

 
4
,1

1
3
,9

4
8

 
4
,1

5
2
,3

9
4

 
4
,1

8
6
,7

4
5

 
4
,1

6
7
,9

2
4

 
4
,1

2
2
,6

9
8

 

In
a
c
ti
v
e
  

 
3
5
3
,4

0
2

 
3
2
9
,4

5
7

 
3
8
0
,9

5
6

 
4
2
0
,6

9
4

 
4
3
2
,6

6
3

 
4
0
9
,4

5
6

 
4
2
7
,1

5
7

 
3
5
1
,5

2
7

 
4
0
2
,0

0
7

 
4
4
7
,0

1
9

 
7
0
0
,4

7
2

 
3
2
8
,7

0
1

 

In
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

3
,6

8
9
,5

4
9

 
3
,7

0
7
,7

6
1

 
3
,6

8
1
,8

2
8

 
3
,6

2
1
,8

3
0

 
3
,7

0
7
,1

4
2

 
3
,6

8
0
,6

5
9

 
3
,6

3
5
,3

3
0

 
3
,7

6
2
,4

2
1

 
3
,7

5
0
,3

8
7

 
3
,7

3
9
,7

2
6

 
3
,4

6
7
,4

5
2

 
3
,7

9
3
,9

9
7

 

In
a
c
ti
v
e
 

d
e
b
t 

8
.7

4
%

 
8
.1

6
%

 
9
.3

8
%

 
1
0
.4

1
%

 
1
0
.4

5
%

 
1
0
.0

1
%

 
1
0
.5

1
%

 
8
.5

4
%

 
9
.6

8
%

 
1
0
.6

8
%

 
1
6
.8

1
%

 
7
.9

7
%

 

S
D

 
N

o
t 
A

v
a

il 
N

o
t 
A

v
a

il 
 

1
,2

4
7
,6

3
0

 
1
,3

9
5
,5

0
0

 
1
,1

7
8
,7

4
2

 
1
,1

4
8
,2

2
0

 
8
2
9
,7

1
7

 
6
4
6
,2

9
5

 
5
2
3
,7

1
2

 
4
9
8
,4

2
8

 
6
0
2
,7

6
0

 
6
8
7
,0

8
3

 

In
a
c
ti
v
e
  

 
N

o
t 
A

v
a

il 
N

o
t 
A

v
a

il 
9
7
1
,6

2
3

 
5
1
8
,8

8
6

 
5
2
2
,3

5
3

 
6
3
1
,2

2
0

 
4
2
0
,4

4
4

 
9
6
,2

3
0

 
9
1
,3

3
1

 
9
9
,1

6
0

 
2
7
,8

4
8

 
5
1
,1

7
1

 

In
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

N
o
t 
A

v
a

il 
N

o
t 
A

v
a

il 
2
7
6
,0

0
7

 
8
7
6
,6

1
3

 
6
5
6
,3

8
8

 
5
1
7
,0

0
0

 
4
0
9
,2

7
3

 
5
5
0
,0

6
5

 
4
3
2
,3

8
1

 
3
9
9
,2

6
8

 
5
7
4
,9

1
1

 
6
3
5
,9

1
2

 

In
a
c
ti
v
e
 

d
e
b
t 

N
o

t 
A

v
a
il

 
N

o
t 

A
v

a
il

 
7
7
.8

8
%

 
3
7
.1

8
%

 
4
4
.3

1
%

 
5
4
.9

7
%

 
5
0
.6

7
%

 
1
4
.8

9
%

 
1
7
.4

4
%

 
1
9
.8

9
%

 
4
.6

2
%

 
7
.4

5
%

 

19



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 6

 

A
u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 A

g
e
 d

e
b
t 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 
 

2
 o

f 
2

 

 A
ll 

fi
g
u

re
s
 g

iv
e

n
 b

e
lo

w
, 

a
re

 t
h
e

 m
o

v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 t
h

e
 l
a

s
t 
e

le
v
e

n
 m

o
n

th
s
. 

 

§
 

O
v
e

ra
ll 

d
e

b
t 

le
v
e

ls
 a

s
 a

t 
3

1
s
t  M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
 

C
o
m

p
a

re
d

 
to

 
M

a
rc

h
 
2

0
1
2

, 
u

n
m

a
n

a
g
e

d
 
d

e
b

t 
is

 
£

4
0

,9
1
1

 
le

s
s
, 

a
n

d
 
th

e
 
o

u
ts

ta
n
d

in
g
 
a

rr
e

a
rs

 
c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 
to

 
re

d
u

c
e

, 
a

s
 
th

e
y
 
a

re
 

£
3

,9
1

2
,0

9
9
 l
e
s
s
. 

 
§
 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 a

s
 a

t 
3

1
s
t  M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
 

U
n
m

a
n

a
g
e

d
 d

e
b
t 

is
 £

2
4

,7
3
2

 l
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 o
v
e
ra

ll 
o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 a

rr
e

a
rs

 a
re

 £
1

,6
0

7
,9

1
0

 l
e
s
s
. 

 
§
 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 R

a
te

s
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1

s
t  M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
 

U
n
m

a
n

a
g
e

d
 d

e
b
t 

re
m

a
in

s
 u

n
c
h

a
n

g
e

d
. 
T

h
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g
 a

rr
e

a
rs

 a
re

 £
1
,7

4
7

,3
6

2
 l
e
s
s
. 

 
§
 

F
o
rm

e
r 

T
e
n

a
n
t 

A
rr

e
a

rs
 a

s
 a

t 
3

1
s
t  M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
 

U
n
m

a
n

a
g
e

d
 d

e
b
t 

is
 £

8
3

,7
8
6

 l
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 o
v
e
ra

ll 
o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 a

rr
e

a
rs

 a
re

 £
3

6
1
,8

2
9

 l
e
s
s
. 

 
§
 

H
o
u

s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

O
v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 P

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 a
s
 a

t 
3
1

s
t  M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
 

U
n
m

a
n

a
g
e

d
 d

e
b

t 
is

 £
2

4
,7

0
1

 l
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g
 a

rr
e
a

rs
 a

re
 £

7
9
,7

4
7

 m
o

re
, 

d
u
e

 t
o
 a

n
 i

n
c
re

a
s
e

 o
f 

a
p
p

e
a

ls
 a

n
d

 a
n
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 p

e
n

d
e
d

 o
v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n
ts

, 
a
n

d
 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
c
lim

a
te

 o
f 

tr
y
in

g
 t

o
 r

e
c
o

v
e

r 
a
 l
o
w

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

 d
e

b
t.

 
 

§
 

S
u

n
d

ry
 D

e
b

ts
 a

s
 a

t 
3

1
s
t  M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
 

C
o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1

2
, 
u

n
m

a
n
a

g
e

d
 d

e
b

t 
is

 £
2

1
,9

0
3

 l
e
s
s
, 
a

n
d

 t
h
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g
 b

a
la

n
c
e

 i
s
 £

3
9
8

,9
5

6
 l
e

s
s
. 
 

 
§
 

P
ri
o

ri
ty

 D
e
b

ts
 3

1
s
t  M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
 

A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
p

ri
o

ri
ty

 d
e

b
t 

a
s
 d

e
fi
n
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

e
b

t 
P

o
lic

y
 w

e
 n

o
w

 h
a

v
e

 d
e

b
t 

o
n

 h
o

ld
 a

w
a

it
in

g
 c

le
a

ra
n

c
e

 o
f 

p
ri
o

ri
ty

 d
e

b
ts

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 b

ro
a
d

ly
 b

ro
k
e

n
 d

o
w

n
 a

s
 F

T
A

 £
7

9
.2

k
, 

S
u

n
d

ry
 d

e
b

t 
£

3
.7

k
 a

n
d

 O
P

H
B

 £
1
5

2
.8

k
, 

a
s
 a

t 
1

9
th

 A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
3

. 
A

s
 m

o
re

 c
a

s
e

s
 r

e
a

c
h
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
c
o
u

rt
 a

c
ti
o

n
 t
h

is
 c

a
te

g
o

ry
 o

f 
d

e
b

t 
p

e
n

d
in

g
 o

th
e

r 
p
ri
o

ri
ty

 d
e

b
t 

w
ill

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

. 
 

 

20



 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC 
 

 
Audit Committee Meeting Date: 
 
Policy Document: 

 
 

Directorate: 
 
 

Accountable Cabinet Member:  
 

  
20 May 2013 
 
No 
 
Resources 
 
Cllr Alan Bottwood 
 

 
 

1. Purpose 

 

1.1 To outline the policy for Northampton Borough Council for non-audit related 
work conducted by our appointed external auditors. 

  

2. Recommendations 

 
2.1 To approve the policy as provided at Appendix A. 

2.2 To approve that any assignments related to additional audit work that exceed 
£20k are referred to audit committee to test that the independence of audit is 
not compromised.  

2.3 To approve that any additional advisory services from KPMG are approved by 
audit committee prior to commencement.  

 

3. Issues and Choices 

 
3.1 Report Background 

3.1.1 It is important that the independence of our external auditors (KPMG) in 
reporting to members and Northampton Borough Council does not appear to 
be compromised. It is equally important however that the Council can still 
access the expertise of KPMG where required on non – audit related matters.  

Report Title Policy for Non – Audit Related Activity 

Appendices: 
 

1 

Agenda Item 7

21



3.1.2 This policy therefore sets out any threats to audit independence that 
potentially exist and defines the non – audit work that can be shared by the 
Council and KPMG. 

3.1.3 This policy also sets out the approval process and corporate reporting 
mechanisms that will be in place for any non – audit work that KPMG perform 
on behalf of the Council.  

 

3.2 Issues 

3.2.1 The institute for Chartered Accountants in England and Wales sets out threats 
to independence as follows:  

- Self Interest, where an interest in the outcome of their work or in depth 
relationship with the Council may conflict with an auditors objectivity,  

- Self-audit, where the auditors may be checking their own organisations 
work,  

- Advocacy, which may be present in engagement but could become a 
threat if an auditor becomes an advocate for an extreme position in an 
adversarial matter,  

- Familiarity or Council, where the level of constructive challenge is 
diminished as a result of assumed knowledge,  

3.2.2 As a result of these perceived threats and in order to provide the Council with 
a transparent mechanism by which non-audit work can be reviewed, KPMG 
have provided categories that relate to specific professional services that they 
provide. These are:  

- 1. Statutory and audit related work not requiring audit committee approval,  

- 2. Audit related and advisory work not requiring audit committee approval,  

- 3. Projects that are not permitted  

3.2.3 Approval against point 2 above will not be required, unless any assignment 
exceeds the approved limit of £20K. Where this limit is exceeded the audit 
committee will be asked to ensure that the assignment does not compromise 
the independence of our external auditors based on the threats identified in 
3.2.1 

3.2.4 Approval against categories 1 and 2 above are requested for approval in 2.2 
and 2.3 respectively. 

3.2.5 The table on page 3 of the policy at Appendix A gives examples against the 
three categories provided in 3.2.2.  

   

3.3 Choices (Options) 

3.3.1 This report recommends the policy provided at Appendix A 
 
4. Implications (including financial implications) 

 
4.1 Policy 

4.1.1 There are no specific policy implications arising from this report. 

22



4.2 Resources and Risk 

4.2.1 This report recommends the policy at appendix A in order to mitigate any risk 
from non – audit related assignments by our external auditors. 

 
4.3 Legal 

4.3.1 There are no specific legal implications arising from this report. 

 

4.4 Equality 

4.4.1 There are no specific equalities implications arising from this report. 

 

4.5 Consultees (Internal and External) 

4.5.1 None at this stage.   

 

4.6 How the Proposals deliver Priority Outcomes 

4.6.1 Protecting and enhancing the reputation of Northampton Borough Council. 

 

4.7 Other Implications 

4.7.1 Not applicable 

 

5. Background Papers 

 

 

Robin Bates 
Head of Finance and Resources, ext 7119 

23



Appendix 1 

 
 
 
 

Policy for Engagement of 
External Auditors for Non-

Audit Work 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Northampton Borough Council 

24



Introduction and purpose of this policy  
 
It is important that the independence of our external auditors in reporting to members and 
Northampton Borough Council (the Council) does not appear to be compromised but equally that the 
Council should not be deprived of expertise where it is needed and can be leveraged from KPMG as 
a whole. This policy therefore seeks to set out what threats to audit independence theoretically exist 
and thus provides a definition of non-audit work which can be shared by the Council and KPMG. It 
then seeks to establish the approval processes and corporate reporting mechanisms that will be put in 
place for any non-audit work that KPMG is asked to perform.  
 

Threats to independence  
 
The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales sets out threats to independence as:  
 

self interest  where an interest in the outcome of their work or in a 
depth of relationship with the Council may conflict 
with the auditors’ objectivity  

Self-audit  where the auditors may be checking their own 
colleagues work and might feel constrained from 
identifying risks and shortcomings  

advocacy  which may be present in engagement but could 
become a threat if an auditor becomes an advocate 
for an extreme position in an adversarial matter  

familiarity or Council  where the level of constructive challenge provided by 
the auditor is diminished as a result of assumed 
knowledge or relationships that exist 

 
 

Defining types of non-audit work and the associated approval process  
 
In order to provide the Council a transparent mechanism by which non-audit work can be reviewed 
and progressed without too great an administrative burden falling on the Council, the following three 
categories of work have been agreed as applying to the professional services available from KPMG:  
 

1. Statutory and audit related work not requiring Audit Committee approval  
 
There are certain projects where the work is clearly audit related and the external auditors are best 
placed to do the work (e.g. providing a certificate on grant claims outside of the Audit Commission 
regime). It is proposed that such assignments do not require Council or Audit Committee approval. 
However, recognising that the level of non-audit fees may also be a threat to independence, a limit of 
£20,000 [to be decided by the Audit Committee] is set, above which prior Audit Committee approval 
should be sought for such work.  

 
2. Audit related and advisory services requiring prior audit committee approval  

 
There are projects and engagements where the auditors are best placed to perform the work:  
 

- Due to their network within and knowledge of the business (e.g. taxation advice, due diligence 
and accounting advice);  

 

- Due to their previous experience or market leadership.  

 

It is proposed that prior Audit Committee approval is sought for projects of this nature.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

25



3. Projects that are not permitted 

 

There are some projects that are not to be performed by the external auditors. These projects 

represent a real threat to the independence of the audit team such as where the external auditors 

would be in a position where they are auditing their own work (for example, systems implementation). 

The Audit Committee is responsible for approving all non-audit work undertaken by the external 

auditors and reporting any instances to the Council. These proposed categories of non-audit work 

along with the related approval levels are set out below. More detail on each type of work is set out in 

Appendix A. 

For the avoidance of doubt, seeking approval from the Audit Committee involves the business 

sponsor of the proposed work obtaining a proposed scope and fee estimate from KPMG before the 

work commences. If the fee exceeds the proposed limits or falls into a category of work that requires 

approval, details of the scope and fee proposal should be submitted to the Audit Committee Chairman 

and Director of Finance. If approved, the project should be logged by the Audit Committee secretary 

to be raised at the next Audit Committee meeting and the Council Secretary informed in order that a 

schedule of non-audit fees can be maintained and Council of Governors updated. 

In cases where it is undecided which category services fall into they will default to the category that 

requires Audit Committee approval and be expected to take that route until such as time as this policy 

is reviewed and updated by the Audit Committee. 

Reviewing and updating this policy 

KPMG will include within our annual ISA 260 (report to those charged with governance) an appendix 

that summarises any additional work that they have performed for the Council and a review of the 

effectiveness of this policy. 

The Audit Committee will formally agree on an annual basis that it is content with the structure, 

content and operation of this policy. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

26



Appendix A: Examples of work types 

The table below sets out examples of the different work types that could be requested from KPMG. As 

it would not be practical to consider all the services provided by KPMG we have documented the 

characteristics that drive the classification of services into the different work steams. This table is 

intended to provide illustrative examples of how the implementation of this policy would be 

approached should the Council request assistance from KPMG. 

 Statutory and audit related  

(Not requiring audit committee 

approval, unless in excess of 

£20k) 

Audit and assurance 
related and non-audit 

advisory services 

(Sensitive projects 

requiring referral without 

de minimis) 

Projects that are not 
permitted 

Characteristics  • Advice on areas core to 

the financial 

statements audit 

 

• Requiring 

independent 

objective 

assessment of 

information or 

procedures  

• Staff 

secondments 

• Other advisory 

services  

• Participation in 

management  

 

Acquisitions /  
Disposals  

• Accountants reports  

• Reporting on financial 

assistance  

• Audit of carve out 

financial statements  

 

• Due diligence and 

related advice  

• Completion 

accounts audit  

• Agreement of 

price adjustment 

as a result of 

completion 

accounts  

• Advice on 

integration 

activities  

• Preparation of 

forecast of 

investment 

proposals  

  

Internal Audit and 
Risk Management 

Services  

• None  

 

• Provision of 

specialist skills / 

training  

• Advice on 

methodology and 

systems  

• Co-sourcing  

• Advice and design 

of policies, 

systems or 

procedures 

• Full outsourcing  

• Systems 

implementation  

 

Taxation  • None  

 

• Preparation of 

draft returns  

• Submission of 

returns and 

correspondence 

with tax 

authorities  

• Advice on tax 

matters  

• Transfer pricing  

• Preparation of 

accounting entries 

for tax  

• Handling taxation 

payments  

 

27



• Valuation for the 

purposes of 

taxation 

General Accounting  • None  

 

• Advice on 

accounts 

preparation and 

application of 

accounting 

standards  

• Training for 

accounting and 

risk management 

projects  

• Booking keeping 

services  

 

• Preparation of 

accounting entries  

• Preparation of 

financial 

information  

 

 

28



www.pwc.co.uk

Internal Audit

Annual Report
2012/2013

Northampton Borough
Council

May 2013

Agenda Item 8

29



Annual Report 2012/2013 Draft

Internal audit report for

Northampton Borough Council PwC Contents

Contents

1. Executive summary 1

2. Summary of findings 3

3. Internal Audit work conducted 4

4. Follow up work conducted 10

Appendices 11

Appendix 1: Limitations and responsibilities 12
Appendix 2: Basis of our classifications 13

Distribution List

For action Senior Management Team

Heads of Service

For information Audit Committee

This document has been prepared only for Northampton Borough Council and solely
for the purpose and on the terms agreed with Northampton Borough Council.

30



Internal Audit Annual Report 2012/13 for Northampton Borough Council Draft

Annual Internal audit report for

Northampton Borough Council PwC 1

Background
The relevant government standards, CIPFA’s Audit Code of Practice requires that the Head of Internal Audit
provides a written report to the Audit Committee timed to inform the organisation’s Annual Governance
Statement. As such, the purpose of this report is to present our view on the adequacy and effectiveness of
Northampton Borough Council’s system of governance, risk management and control.

Whilst this report is a key element of the framework designed to inform the Annual Governance Statement,
there are also a number of other important sources to which the Audit Committee should look to gain
assurance. This report does not supplant the Audit Committee’s responsibility for forming its own view on
governance, risk management and control.

This report covers the period to the year ended 31 March 2013. The specific time period covered by our work for
each individual audit is recorded in Section 3.

Scope
Our findings are based on the results of the internal audit work performed as set out in the Internal Audit Risk
Assessment and Plan approved by the Audit Committee on 19 March 2012. All changes have been outlined in
our update reports taken to the Audit Committee during the year.

Our opinion is subject to the inherent limitations of internal audit (covering both the control environment and
the assurance over controls) as set out in Appendix 1.

Internal audit work was performed in accordance with PwC's Internal Audit methodology which is aligned to
CIPFA’s Audit Code of Practice. As a result, our work and deliverables are not designed or intended to comply
with the International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board (IAASB), International Framework for
Assurance Engagements (IFAE) and International Standard on Assurance Engagements (ISAE) 3000.

Opinion
Our opinion is based solely on our assessment of whether the controls in place support the achievement of
management's objectives as set out in our Internal Audit Risk Assessment and Plan and Individual Assignment
Reports.

We have completed the program of internal audit work for the year ended 31 March although some reports
remain in draft where management comments are still awaited.

Our work identified 1 high, 15 moderate and 48 low rated findings. Based on the work we have
completed, we believe that there is some risk that management's objectives may not be fully
achieved. Improvements are required in those areas to enhance the adequacy and / or
effectiveness of governance, risk management and internal control.

The key factor that contributed to our opinion is summarised as follows:

Housing allocations - The key weakness identified in this report relates to the lack of availability of
key documents which provide evidence of compliance with established procedures. It is important the
Authority retain this key documentation in order to substantiate the allocation of council housing to
those in greatest need in compliance with the Housing Act, 1996 and so they can defend their decisions
in light of growing public and political scrutiny regarding the allocation of council properties across the
region.

A summary of the key findings are described in further detail on page 3.

On pages 4, 5 and 6 we show the direction of travel for both individual review areas and for the number of audit
recommendations in each risk category (critical, high, medium and low). This indicates that the overall control
environment at the Council has improved from the prior year.

1. Executive summary

31



Internal Audit Annual Report 2012/13 for Northampton Borough Council Draft

Annual Internal audit report for

Northampton Borough Council PwC 2

For many of the areas reviewed in the year, the rating this year was either better or the same as last year. The
number of internal audit findings and recommendations has reduced with a total number of 64 findings in
2012/13 compared to 72 in the previous year. There are reductions in the high and medium risk categories and
a small increase in the low risk category.

Reviews deferred into 2013/14 Plan

The following reviews have been deferred into the 2013/14 plan:

Car parking - due to lack of availability of management, work is deferred to May/June 2013

IT review: “Bring your own devices” – fieldwork completed in May 2013

Asset management – planned timing was not considered to be appropriate by management

National Fraud Initiative: Data matching – work is ongoing and will be completed during the first half
of 2013/14

Acknowledgement
We would like to take this opportunity to thank Northampton Borough Council staff, for their co-operation and
assistance provided during the year.

32



Internal Audit Annual Report 2012/13 for Northampton Borough Council Draft

PwC 3

Our annual internal audit report is timed to inform the organisation’s Annual Governance Statement.

A summary of key findings from our programme of internal audit work for the year is recorded in the table
below:

Description Detail

Overview

We completed 26 internal audit reviews (including
value enhancement reviews). This resulted in the
identification of 0 critical, 1 high, 16 medium and 47
low risk findings to improve weaknesses in the design
of controls and / or operating effectiveness.

Our audit plan was scoped to address the Council’s key
risks and strategic objectives. We mapped each review
to these areas in our 2012/13 Internal Audit plan

We have completed our internal audit plan in line with
the set timescales, subject to the amendments agreed
by management.

Internal Control Issues

During the course of our work we identified one high
risk finding that the Council may wish to consider
including in its Annual Governance Statement.

The following high risk area has been identified in
2012/13:

Housing allocations

The key weakness identified in this report relates to
the lack of availability of key documents which provide
evidence of compliance with established procedures.
It is important the Authority retain this key
documentation in order to substantiate the allocation
of council housing to those in greatest need in
compliance with the Housing Act, 1996 and so they
can defend their decisions in light of growing public
and political scrutiny regarding the allocation of
council properties across the region.

Good practice

We also identified a number of areas where few
weaknesses were identified and / or areas of good
practice were observed.

The following reviews were classified as low risk in
2012/13:

Council tax

Budgetary control

General Ledger

Debtors

Cash and banking

Creditors (IBS and Agresso)

Fixed assets

Payroll

Housing benefits

Debt recovery

HR – Potentially violent persons

Landlord services – Gas Safety /Property Transfer

Strategic Housing – Accounting for grant income

Policy and community engagement – Equalities

Cultural Services – Museum security

Conflicts of interest

2. Summary of findings

33



Internal Audit Annual Report 2012/13 for Northampton Borough Council Draft

PwC 4

Introduction
Our internal audit work was conducted in accordance with our letter of engagement dated 18 October 2010,
CIPFA Audit Code of Practice and the Internal Audit Risk Assessment and Plan.

The table below sets out the results of our internal audit work. The direction of travel is also analysed so
management can consider whether they should take action to reverse a trend or address stagnation.

We also include a comparison between planned internal audit activity and actual activity, to assist with
budgeting and forward planning.

Results of individual assignments

Audit unit
Report
status

Direction of
Travel

Report
classification

Number of findings

Critical High Medium Low

Cross Cutting

Council tax Final No review
performed in
prior year

Low Risk 0 0 0 1

NNDR Final No review
performed in
prior year

Medium Risk 0 0 4 1

Budgetary Control Final Low Risk 0 0 1 0

General Ledger
(part of core
financial systems
review)

Final Low Risk 0 0 1 2

Debtors (part of
core financial
systems review)

Final Low Risk 0 0 0 4

Creditors (Agresso)
(part of core
financial systems
review)

Final Low Risk 0 0 0 1

Payroll (part of
core financial
systems review)

Draft Low Risk 0 0 1 1

Cash and Banking
(part of core
financial systems
review)

Final Low Risk 0 0 0 1

Creditors (IBS) Final Low Risk 0 0 0 0

3. Internal Audit work conducted

34



Internal Audit Annual Report 2012/13 for Northampton Borough Council Draft

PwC 5

Audit unit
Report
status

Direction of
Travel

Report
classification

Number of findings

Critical High Medium Low

Fixed Assets Final Low Risk 0 0 0 2

Housing Benefits Final Low Risk 0 0 0 4

Housing rents Final Medium Risk 0 0 2 4

Debt Recovery Final Low Risk 0 0 0 4

Shared Services
Transition
Planning

Draft No review
performed in
prior year

Medium Risk 0 0 3 2

Departmental

Human Resources
– Potentially
violent persons

Final No review
performed in
prior year

Low Risk 0 0 1 2

Landlord Services
– Gas safety checks
and property
transfer process

Draft No review
performed in
prior year

Low Risk 0 0 1 4

Strategic Housing
– accounting for
grant income

Final No review
performed in
prior year

Low Risk 0 0 0 1

Strategic Housing
– Housing
Allocations

Draft No review
performed in
prior year

Medium Risk 0 1 0 4

Policy and
Community
Engagement –
Equalities

Draft No review
performed in
prior year

Low Risk 0 0 0 4

Cultural Services –
Museum security

Final No review
performed in
prior year

Low Risk 0 0 1 3

Conflicts of
Interest

Final No review
performed in
prior year

Low Risk 0 0 0 3

Total 0 1 15 48

35



Internal Audit Annual Report 2012/13 for Northampton Borough Council Draft

PwC 6

In addition we have carried out the following reviews where no risk rating has been provided:

Risk Management (final)

Cultural Services – Leisure Trust Contract (follow-up review) (final)

Environmental Services – Environmental Services Contract (follow-up review) (final)

Landlord Services – Decent Homes Contract (follow-up review) (final)

Landlord Services - Voids Management (follow-up review) (final)

Borough Solicitor Function – Anti-fraud Health Check (follow-up review) (draft)

Direction of control travel

Finding rating
Trend between current
and prior year

Number of findings

2012/13 2011/12 2010/11

Critical 0 0 0

High 1 4 5

Medium 15 30 62

Low 48 38 63

Total 64 72 130

It should be noted that the mix and focus of our internal audit plans have differed between years and therefore
these results may not be directly comparable.

Implications for management

Management should look to concentrate on higher risk areas and those with deteriorating performance (e.g.
Housing Allocations and Housing Rents) to ensure that controls in these areas are improved. Actions may
include raising awareness, training, increasing compliance checks or improved escalation processes.

Comparison of planned and actual activity

Ref Audit Type Audit Type Planned
number of
audit days

Actual
number of
audit days

A Cross-cutting

A.1 Risk Management and Business Continuity Value
protection

5 5

A.2 Council Tax Value
protection

6 6

A.3 NNDR Value
protection

10 10

36



Internal Audit Annual Report 2012/13 for Northampton Borough Council Draft

PwC 7

A.4 Core Financial Systems Reviews Value
protection

40 45*

A.5 Budgetary Control Value
protection

8 8

A.6 Creditors (IBS) Value
protection

8 8

A.7 Fixed Assets Value
protection

6 8

A.8 Housing Benefits Value
protection

8 8

A.9 Housing rents Value
protection

6 7*

A.10 Debt Recovery Value
protection

10 10

Total 107 115

B Departmental

B.1 Human Resources - potentially violent persons Value
protection

8 9*

B.2 Customer Services and ICT - IT review Value
protection

15 2

B.3 Landlord Services - Voids and repairs process Value
protection

15 15

B.3 Landlord Services - Decent Homes Value
protection

5 6*

B.4 Strategic Housing - Accounting for grant income Value
protection

8 8

B.4 Strategic Housing - Housing allocations Value
protection

8 9*

B.5 Communications Team - Eforms Value
protection

5 1

B.6 Policy and Community engagement - Equalities Value
protection

8 14

B.7 Asset Management - time recording system,
disposals, delivery of corporate programme

Value
protection

8 2

B.8 Environmental Services - environmental services
contract

Value
protection

5 6*

B.9 Cultural Services - Leisure trust Value
protection

5 5

B.9 Cultural Services - Museums security Value
protection

8 8

B.10 Corporate Performance and Change - data quality Value
protection

8 1

B.11 Democratic and Chief Executive Services -
Community asset transfer scheme

Value
protection

8 1

B.12 Borough Solicitor Function - corporate fraud
arrangements - anti fraud health check follow up

Value
protection

5 8*

Car Parking review Specialist 0 7

Total 119 102

VE Value Enhancement

VE.1 Governance and controls workshop Value
enhancement

2 0

VE.2 Audit Committee Effectiveness Training Value
enhancement

2 0

VE.3 Anti-fraud awareness training Value
enhancement

4 4

VE.4 NFI data matching Value
enhancement

20 8

37



Internal Audit Annual Report 2012/13 for Northampton Borough Council Draft

PwC 8

VE.5 Support on HR project Value
enhancement

12 2

VE.6 Conflicts of Interest Value
enhancement

5 5

Shared Services Transition Planning Specialist 0 20

Total 45 39

PM Project Management/Other

PM.2 Teamcentral N/A 10 0

PwC audit tracker N/A 0 10

PM.3 Audit Management N/A 18 30**

Total 28 40

TOTAL DAYS 299 296

Adjustments to the original agreed audit plan

The following adjustments were made to the audit plan originally agreed by the Audit Committee. These have
been reported as part of the Progress Reports to the Audit Committee during the year.

Review Days Comments

Removed from 12/13 plan

IT review -13 Timing not considered appropriate. To be
included in the 13/14 audit plan.

Communications team – eforms -4 Eforms have not been implemented therefore
will not be audited in the year.

Asset Management -6 Timing not considered appropriate. To be
included in the 13/14 audit plan.

Corporate Performance and
Change – data quality

-7 Corporate Performance and Change Team
advised that a review in this area is no longer
necessary.

Democratic and Chief Executive
Services – Community asset
transfer scheme

-7 Director of Resources advised that a review in
this area is no longer necessary.

Governance & controls workshop
and Audit Committee
Effectiveness training

-4 This will be reassessed as part of the 13/14 plan
when post LGSS governance structures are in
place

NFI data matching -12 Fieldwork is ongoing, days to be deferred into
the 13/14 audit plan

Support on HR project -10 This project is no longer going ahead therefore a
review in this area is no longer considered
necessary.

Team Central -10 The software licence for Team Central has
expired during the year and is no longer utilised
therefore updates to the system are no longer
required

Total -73

Included in the 12/13 plan

Car Parking Review + 7 A specialist review of the process in place to
develop and monitor budgets. Originally
planned that work would be completed in 12/13
however due to lack of availability of
management, fieldwork and reporting is
deferred to May/June 2013 and will be included

38



Internal Audit Annual Report 2012/13 for Northampton Borough Council Draft

PwC 9

in 13/14 plan.

Shared Services Transition
Planning

+ 20 A specialist review of the control and
governance around LGSS transition plans

PwC audit tracker + 10 Implementation of the new PwC
recommendation tracker software tool to
replace Team Central (implementation to
commence May 2013)

Policy and Community
engagement – Equalities

+ 6 Additional days used to extend the scope of this
review at the request of the Head of Business
Change

Fixed assets +2 Original audit plan had not allowed for changes
due to implementation of new fixed asset system
and the change in accounting policy.

* Additional days for various
reviews

+13 A number of reviews took longer that originally
planned, primarily due to the lack of availability
of NBC staff and management to support the
internal audit review and reporting process.

** Additional days for audit
management

+12 We have incurred significant additional
management time as a result of reviews being
delayed or rescheduled. In addition draft
reports have taken a long time to finalise as a
result of difficulties in getting hold of officers to
provide comment and review. This has been
particularly noticeable during the last quarter
during which the LGSS transition has started to
have an impact.

Total + 70

Overall net position 3

39



Internal Audit Annual Report 2012/13 for Northampton Borough Council Draft

PwC 10

Introduction and results of follow up work

Within the Internal Audit Risk Assessment and Plan for 2012/13, days were assigned within each review for
following up recommendations raised during previous periods in order to assess whether agreed actions had
been implemented by management.

We have considered the progress made and reported this where relevant in each individual report issued
throughout the year. There are no matters that we wish to specifically draw out here. We considered prior year
recommendations as part of all the reviews undertaken within the 2012/13 Internal Audit Risk Assessment and
Plan.

Summary
We recommend that further work is conducted by Northampton Borough Council to ensure all previously
agreed recommendations are implemented at the earliest opportunity. Recommendations that are ongoing and
outstanding have been re-raised in the current year where relevant. The implementation of the new audit
tracking system will support this process.

4. Follow up work conducted

40



Internal Audit Annual Report 2012/13 for Northampton Borough Council Draft

PwC 11

Appendices

41



Internal Audit Annual Report 2012/13 for Northampton Borough Council Draft

PwC 12

Limitations inherent to the internal auditor’s work
We have prepared the Internal Audit Annual Report and undertaken the agreed programme of work as agreed
with management and the Audit Committee, subject to the limitations outlined below.

Opinion
The opinion is based solely on the work undertaken as part of the Internal Audit Risk Assessment and Plan,
which provided for 26 internal audit reviews (including value enhancement reviews) in 296 days. The work
addressed the control objectives agreed for each individual internal audit assignments as set out in our
Individual Assignment Reports.

There might be weaknesses in the system of internal control that we are not aware of because they did not form
part of our programme of work, were excluded from the scope of individual internal audit assignments or were
not brought to our attention. As a consequence management and the Audit Committee should be aware that our
opinion may have differed if our programme of work or scope for individual reviews was extended or other
relevant matters were brought to our attention.

Internal control:
Internal control systems, no matter how well designed and operated, are affected by inherent limitations. These
include the possibility of poor judgment in decision-making, human error, control processes being deliberately
circumvented by employees and others, management overriding controls and the occurrence of unforeseeable
circumstances.

Future periods:
Our assessment of controls relating to Northampton Borough Council is for the year ended 31 March 2013.
Historic evaluation of effectiveness may not be relevant to future periods due to the risk that:

the design of controls may become inadequate because of changes in operating environment, law,
regulation or other; or

the degree of compliance with policies and procedures may deteriorate.

The specific time period for each individual internal audit is recorded within section3 of this report.

Responsibilities of management and internal auditors
It is management’s responsibility to develop and maintain sound systems of risk management, internal control
and governance and for the prevention and detection of irregularities and fraud. Internal audit work should not
be seen as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the design and operation of these systems.

We endeavour to plan our work so that we have a reasonable expectation of detecting significant control
weaknesses and, if detected, we shall carry out additional work directed towards identification of consequent
fraud or other irregularities. However, internal audit procedures alone, even when carried out with due
professional care, do not guarantee that fraud will be detected, and our examinations as internal auditors
should not be relied upon to disclose all fraud, defalcations or other irregularities which may exist.

Appendix 1: Limitations and
responsibilities

42



Internal Audit Annual Report 2012/13 for Northampton Borough Council Draft

PwC 13

Report classifications
The report classification is determined by allocating points to each of the findings included in the report

Findings rating Points

Critical 40 points per finding

High 10 points per finding

Medium 3 points per finding

Low 1 point per finding

Report classification Points

Critical risk 40 points and over

High risk 16– 39 points

Medium risk 7– 15 points

Low risk 6 points or less

Appendix 2: Basis of our
classifications

43



Internal Audit Annual Report 2012/13 for Northampton Borough Council Draft

PwC 14

Individual finding ratings

Finding rating Assessment rationale

Critical A finding that could have a:

Critical impact on operational performance; or

Criticalmonetary or financial statement impact; or

Critical breach in laws and regulations that could result in material fines or

consequences; or

Critical impact on the reputation or brand of the organisation which could
threaten its future viability.

High A finding that could have a:

Significant impact on operational performance; or

Significantmonetary or financial statement impact; or

Significant breach in laws and regulations resulting in significant fines and
consequences; or

Significant impact on the reputation or brand of the organisation.

Medium A finding that could have a:

Moderate impact on operational performance; or

Moderatemonetary or financial statement impact; or

Moderate breach in laws and regulations resulting in fines and consequences; or

Moderate impact on the reputation or brand of the organisation.

Low A finding that could have a:

Minor impact on the organisation’s operational performance; or

Minormonetary or financial statement impact; or

Minor breach in laws and regulations with limited consequences; or

Minor impact on the reputation of the organisation.

Advisory A finding that does not have a risk impact but has been raised to highlight areas of
inefficiencies or good practice.

44



45



In the event that, pursuant to a request which Northampton Borough Council has received under the Freedom of
Information Act 2000 (as the same may be amended or re
thereunder (collectively, the “Legislation”)
will notify PwC promptly and consult with PwC prior to disclosing such information. Northampton Borough Council agrees
to pay due regard to any representations which PwC may make in connection with such disclosure and to apply any relevant
exemptions which may exist under the Act to such information. If, following consultation with PwC, Northampton Borough
Council discloses any such information, it shall ensure that any disclaimer which PwC has included or may subsequently
wish to include in the information is reproduced in full in any copies disclosed.

This document has been prepared for the intended recipients only. To the extent permi
LLP does not accept or assume any liability, responsibility or duty of care for any use of or reliance on this document by
anyone, other than (i) the intended recipient to the extent agreed in the relevant contract for t
document relates (if any), or (ii) as expressly agreed by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP at its sole discretion in writing in
advance.

© 2013 PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. All rights reserved. In this document, "PwC" refers to Pricewate
(a limited liability partnership in the United Kingdom), which is a member firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers International
Limited, each member firm of which is a separate legal entity.

In the event that, pursuant to a request which Northampton Borough Council has received under the Freedom of
(as the same may be amended or re-enacted from time to time) or any subordinate legislation made

r (collectively, the “Legislation”), it is required to disclose any information contained in this terms of reference, it
will notify PwC promptly and consult with PwC prior to disclosing such information. Northampton Borough Council agrees

d to any representations which PwC may make in connection with such disclosure and to apply any relevant
exemptions which may exist under the Act to such information. If, following consultation with PwC, Northampton Borough

mation, it shall ensure that any disclaimer which PwC has included or may subsequently
wish to include in the information is reproduced in full in any copies disclosed.

This document has been prepared for the intended recipients only. To the extent permitted by law, PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP does not accept or assume any liability, responsibility or duty of care for any use of or reliance on this document by
anyone, other than (i) the intended recipient to the extent agreed in the relevant contract for t
document relates (if any), or (ii) as expressly agreed by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP at its sole discretion in writing in

© 2013 PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. All rights reserved. In this document, "PwC" refers to Pricewate
(a limited liability partnership in the United Kingdom), which is a member firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers International
Limited, each member firm of which is a separate legal entity.

In the event that, pursuant to a request which Northampton Borough Council has received under the Freedom of
enacted from time to time) or any subordinate legislation made

, it is required to disclose any information contained in this terms of reference, it
will notify PwC promptly and consult with PwC prior to disclosing such information. Northampton Borough Council agrees

d to any representations which PwC may make in connection with such disclosure and to apply any relevant
exemptions which may exist under the Act to such information. If, following consultation with PwC, Northampton Borough

mation, it shall ensure that any disclaimer which PwC has included or may subsequently

tted by law, PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP does not accept or assume any liability, responsibility or duty of care for any use of or reliance on this document by
anyone, other than (i) the intended recipient to the extent agreed in the relevant contract for the matter to which this
document relates (if any), or (ii) as expressly agreed by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP at its sole discretion in writing in

© 2013 PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. All rights reserved. In this document, "PwC" refers to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
(a limited liability partnership in the United Kingdom), which is a member firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers International46



www.pwc.co.uk

 

 

Internal Audit Risk 

Assessment and Plan

2013
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Distribution List

Senior Management Team

Heads of Service

Audit Committee

 

 

Northampton Borough 
Council 

 

www.pwc.co.uk 

Internal Audit Risk 

Assessment and Plan

2013/2014 

Distribution List  

Senior Management Team 

Heads of Service 

Audit Committee 

 

Internal Audit Risk 

Assessment and Plan 

Agenda Item 9

47



 

PwC • Contents 

 

Contents 

1. Introduction and Approach 1 

2. Risk Assessment 3 

3. Internal Audit Plan and Indicative Timeline 5 

Appendix 1: Risk Assessment Criteria 9 

Appendix 2: Detailed methodology 10 

 

 

48



 

PwC • 1 

 

Introduction 

This document sets out the internal audit risk assessment and annual plan for Northampton Borough Council.  

Approach 

A summary of our approach to developing the risk assessment and annual internal audit plan is set out below. A 
more detailed description can be found in Appendix 2.  

 

  

1. Introduction and Approach 

• Identify all of the auditable units within the 
organisation. Auditable units can be functions, 
processes or locations.  

• Assess the inherent risk of each auditable unit based on 
impact and likelihood criteria. 

• Calculate the audit requirement rating taking into 
account the inherent risk assessment and the strength of 
the control environment for each auditable unit. 

• Obtain information and utilise sector knowledge to 
identify corporate level objectives and risks. 

Step 1 

Understand corporate 

objectives and risks 

• Assess the strength of the control environment within 
each auditable unit to identify auditable units with a 
high reliance on controls. 

• Consider additional audit requirements to those 
identified from the risk assessment process 

Step 2 

Define the audit universe 

Step 3 

Assess the inherent risk 

Step 4 

Assess the strength of the 

control environment 

Step 5 

Calculate the audit requirement 

rating 

Steps 6 

Other considerations 

Step 7 

Other considerations 

• Determine the timing and scope of audit work based on 
the organisation’s risk appetite. 

Step 6 

Determine the audit plan 

49



 

PwC • 2 

 

Our usual approach is to engage with key stakeholders as part of the planning process and to utilise the existing 
risk registers to inform our audit plans.  

In view of the impending move to Local Government Shared Services (LGSS) this has not been possible this 
year as engagement with key stakeholders has been difficult due to conflicting demands and pressures and also 
the risk registers require further work to reflect the changing organisation.  

 

 

 

50



 

PwC • 3 

 

Audit universe of Northampton Borough Council with risk 
assessment results 

Each auditable unit has been assessed for inherent risk and the strength of the control environment, in 
accordance with the methodology set out in Appendix 2.  

Ref Auditable Unit Inherent 

Risk Rating 

Control 

Environment 

Indicator 

Audit 

Requirement 

Rating 

Colour 

code 

Frequency 

A Cross-cutting      

A.1 Risk Management 5 3 4 � Every year 

A.2 Procurement 5 2 4 � Every year 

A.3 Business Continuity 6 4 4 � Every year 

A.4 Governance 6 4 4 � Every year 

A.5 Treasury 

Management 

5 5 3 � Every two years 

A.6 Budgetary Control 6 5 4 � Every year 

A.7 Insurance claims 3 2 2 � Every three years 

A.8 General Ledger 6 4 4 � Every year 

A.9 Debtors 6 4 4 � Every year 

A.10 Creditors 6 3 4 � Every year 

A.11 Payroll 6 2 5 � Every year 

A.12 Fixed Assets 6 4 4 � Every year 

A.13 Cash and Banking 6 5 4 � Every year 

A.14 Expenses 5 2 4 � Every year 

A.15 Housing Benefits 6 3 4 � Every year 

A.16 Debt Recovery 6 2 5 � Every year 

A.17 Collection Fund 5 4 3 � Every two years 

A.18  Housing Rents 6 4 4 � Every year 

B Departmental Level      

B.1 Finance & Resources        

B.1.1 Finance 6 4 4 � Every year 

B.1.2 Revenues and 

Benefits 
6 3 4 � Every year 

B.2 Business Change      

B.2.1 Human Resources 5 3 4 � Every year 

B.2.2 Corporate 

Performance and 

Change 

4 3 3 � Every two years 

B.2.3 Communications 

Team 

3 2 2 � Every three years 

B.3 Customer & Cultural 

Services 

     

2. Risk Assessment 

51



 

PwC • 4 

 

Ref Auditable Unit Inherent 

Risk Rating 

Control 

Environment 

Indicator 

Audit 

Requirement 

Rating 

Colour 

code 

Frequency 

B.3.1 Customer Services 6 4 4 � Every year 

B.3.2 ICT Operations/ 

Business 

Development 

6 4 4 � Every year 

B.3.3 Culture & Heritage 

Services 

5 3 4 � Every year 

B.3.4 Town Centre 

Operations 
3 3 2 � Every three years 

B.4 Regeneration and 

Development 
4 3 3 � Every two years 

B4.1 Asset Management 4 3 3 � Every two years 

B.5 Public Protection 4 3 3 � Every two years 

B.5.1 Environmental 

Services 

5 3 4 � Every year 

B.5.2 Community Safety  4 3 3 � Every two years 

B.6 Borough Secretary 5 3 4 � Every year 

B.6.1 Democratic and 

Chief Executive 

Services 

4 2 3 � Every two years 

B.7 Landlord Services 5 2 4 � Every year 

B.8 Strategic Housing 5 2 4 � Every year 

B.9 Planning 5 3 4 � Every year 

B.10 West 

Northamptonshire 

Joint Planning Unit 

4 3 3 � Every two years 

B.11 Policy and 

Community 

Engagement 

3 2 2 � Every three years 

       

 

Key to frequency of audit work 

Audit 

Requirement 

Rating 

Colour 

Code 

Timescale Description 

6, 5 and 4 
� Every year A review of processing and monitoring control design and 

operating effectiveness 

3 
� Every two years A review of the design and operating effectiveness of 

monitoring controls 

2 
� Every three years A review of the adequacy of breadth of monitoring controls 

and analytical review of the output of monitoring controls. 

1 
� No further work n/a 

 
  

52



 

PwC • 5 

 

Internal Audit Plan and Indicative Timeline 

The following table sets out the internal audit work planned for 2013/14. 

Ref Auditable Unit Indicative 

number of 

audit days 

2013/14 Comments 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

A Cross-cutting       

A.1 Risk Management 8   X  Specialist review to cover controls and 

processes around the risk management 

framework. 

 

Consideration of structures, roles and 

responsibilities post LGSS with respect to 

risk management, to ensure that NBC 

retains an ability to fulfill its governance 

requirements going forward. 

A.2 Business Continuity 10   X  Review was not performed in 12/13.   

 

Specialist review to consider business 

continuity arrangements post LGSS 

A.3 Governance 10    X Review of governance arrangements 

following move to LGSS 

 

A.4 Corporate Fraud 8   X  Specialist review to consider structures, 

roles and responsibilities post LGSS with 

respect to corporate fraud, to ensure that 

NBC retains an ability to fulfill its governance 

requirements going forward, fraud risks are 

effectively managed and reported. 

A.2 Procurement 10   X  Procurement review to cover: 

• Tendering 

• Purchasing 

• Supplier selection 

A.4 Treasury Management 5  X   Treasury management review to cover: 

• Treasury Management Strategy 

• Monitoring controls over compliance 

with strategy 

A.5 Budgetary Control 8  X   Budgetary Controls review to cover: 

• Budget setting process 

• Budget monitoring and reporting 

A.6 Insurance claims 8   X  Insurance claims review to cover: 

• Policies and procedures 

• Claims processing 

• Monitoring and reporting 

3. Internal Audit Plan and 
Indicative Timeline 

53



 

PwC • 6 

 

Ref Auditable Unit Indicative 

number of 

audit days 

2013/14 Comments 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

A.7 General Ledger 7   X  General Ledger review to cover: 

• Policies and procedures 

• Journals 

• Feeder system reconciliations 

• Suspense accounts 

• Access to the ledger 

A.8 Debtors 7   X  Debtors review to cover: 

• Sundry invoice raising 

• Subscriptions 

• Reconciliations 

A.9 Creditors 6   X  Creditors review to cover: 

• Purchase order authorization 

• Invoicing and payment 

• Reconciliations 

A.10 Payroll 6   X  Payroll review to cover: 

• Starters, leavers and amendments 

• Exception reports 

• Management information 

• Reconciliations 

A.11 Cash 6   X  Cash and banking review to cover: 

• Security of collection points 

• Banking arrangements 

• Allocation of income 

• Reconciliations 

• Management information 

A.12 Creditors (IBS) 7   X  Creditors review to cover: 

• Purchase order authorization 

• Invoicing and payment 

• Reconciliations 

A.13 Fixed Assets 8    X Fixed Assets review to cover: 

• Policies and procedures 

• Additions / disposals / adjustments 

• Re-valuations 

• Depreciation 

• Reconciliations 

• Access to the general ledger 

A.14 Expenses 5   X  Expenses review to cover: 

• Policies and procedures 

• Claims processing 

A.15 Housing Benefits 8    X Housing Benefits review to cover: 

• Benefit processing 

• Payment of benefits 

A.16 Debt Recovery 5   X  Debt Recovery review to cover: 

• Adequacy of debt collection, recovery 

and write-off procedures. 

A.17 Collection Fund 7  X   Collection Fund review to cover: 

• Identification of assets 

• Valuation 

• Billing 

54



 

PwC • 7 

 

Ref Auditable Unit Indicative 

number of 

audit days 

2013/14 Comments 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

A.18 Housing Rents 8   X  Housing Rents review to cover: 

• Rent setting and annual increases 

• Calculation of annual rent debit 

• Changes to housing stocks 

• Debt collection, allocation and rebates 

Total  147      

B Departmental Level       

 Human Resources 8    X Sickness and absence – Processes and 

controls around recording and monitoring 

absences from work 

 Finance – IT review 10  X   IT review – Specialist review of the general 

computer controls and workflow 

arrangements established in Agresso  

 Finance – NFI data 

matching 

-     * See note below 

 Landlord Services 15  X   Travis Perkins – Specialist review of Travis 

Perkins contract and new arrangements for 

e-invoicing  

 Strategic Housing 8   X  Housing allocations – Processes and 

controls around housing allocations under 

the new procedure.  

 Planning 8    X Planning review to cover: 

• Policies and procedures 

• Process 

• Management information 

 ICT Operations/ Business 

Development 

14 X    Bring your own devices  – Processes and 

controls around using personal devices for 

NBC business 

 Environmental Services 15  X   Performance monitoring and reporting 

 Regeneration and 

Development 

15    X Regeneration project – Processes and 

controls around the major regeneration 

projects and Enterprise Zone 

 Asset management 7  X   Asset management review to cover: 

• Strategy 

• Rationalisation of asset base 

• Delivery of the strategy 

• Governance 

 Culture and Leisure 8  X   Delapre Park concerts – Processes and 

controls around the organisation of the 

Delapre Park concerts 

Total  108      

C Value Enhancement       

C.1 Post LGSS reviews 30 X X X X Reviews to consider: 

- Monitoring of SLA’s and 

performance metrics 

- Business as usual operations 

- HR skill set management 

- Change management 

 

Total  30      

55



 

PwC • 8 

 

Ref Auditable Unit Indicative 

number of 

audit days 

2013/14 Comments 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

D Project management / 

other 

      

D.1 PwC tracker  -     PwC tracker maintenance & support will be 

billed separately £3,850 

D.2 Project management 20 X X X X Management of the internal audit contract 

Total  20      

TOTAL PROPOSED DAYS 305      

 
* Finance – NFI data matching.   

14 days were originally planned to be carried over from the 2012/13 internal audit plan to conduct a review of 
the National Fraud Institute data match reports for the following areas: creditor history, creditor standing data, 
insurance claimants, payroll and taxi drivers. 

Given the depth of experience that exists in the Council around fraud investigation, we suggest that it will be 
more efficient for the Council to undertake this work in-house. There is no requirement for it to be performed 
by internal audit. These days can then be utilised to address areas of risk or other value enhancement work.  

 

 

56



 

PwC • 9 

 

Determination of Inherent Risk 

We determine inherent risk as a function of the estimated impact and likelihood for each auditable unit 
within the audit universe as set out in the tables below. 

Impact  rating Assessment rationale 

6 
Critical impact on operational performance or 
Critical monetary or financial statement impact or 
Critical breach in laws and regulations that could result in material fines or consequences; or 
Critical impact on the reputation or brand of the organisation which could threaten its future 

viability. 

5 
Significant impact on operational performance; or 
Significant monetary or financial statement impact; or 
Significant breach in laws and regulations resulting in large fines and consequences; or 

Significant impact on the reputation or brand of the organisation. 

4 
Major impact on operational performance; or 
Major monetary or financial statement impact; or 
Major breach in laws and regulations resulting in significant fines and consequences; or 

Major impact on the reputation or brand of the organisation. 

3 
Moderate impact on the organisation’s operational performance; or 
Moderate monetary or financial statement impact; or 
Moderate breach in laws and regulations with moderate consequences; or  
Moderate impact on the reputation of the organisation. 

2 
Minor impact on the organisation’s operational performance; or 
Minor monetary or financial statement impact; or 
Minor breach in laws and regulations with limited consequences; or  
Minor impact on the reputation of the organisation. 

1 
Insignificant  impact on the organisation’s operational performance; or 
Insignificant  monetary or financial statement impact; or 
Insignificant breach in laws and regulations with little consequence; or  
Insignificant impact on the reputation of the organisation. 

 

Likelihood rating Assessment rationale 

6 Has occurred or probable in the near future 

5 Possible in the next 12 months 

4 Possible in the next 1-2 years 

3 Possible in the medium term (2-5 years) 

2 Possible in the long term (5-10 years) 

1 Unlikely in the foreseeable future 

 

Appendix 1: Risk Assessment 
Criteria 

57



 

PwC • 10 

 

Appendix 2: Detailed methodology 

Step 1 -Understand corporate objectives and risks 

In developing our understanding of your corporate objectives and risks, we have: 

• drawn on our knowledge of Local Government 

• met with a number senior management personnel 

Step 2 -Define the Audit Universe 

In order that our internal audit plan reflects your management and operating structure we have identified the 

audit universe for Northampton Borough Council made up of a number of auditable units.  Auditable units 

include functions, processes, systems, products or locations.  Any processes or systems which cover multiple 

locations are separated into their own distinct cross cutting auditable unit.   

Step 3 -Assess the inherent risk 
Our internal audit plan should focus on the most risky areas of the business. As a result each auditable unit is 
allocated an inherent risk rating i.e. how risky the auditable unit is to the overall organisation and how likely the 
risks are to arise.  

The inherent risk assessment is determined by: 

• mapping the corporate risks to the auditable units 

• our knowledge of your business and its sector 

• discussions with management. 

 

Impact Rating 
Likelihood Rating 

6 5 4 3 2 1 

6 6 6 5 5 4 4 

5 6 5 5 4 4 3 

4 5 5 4 4 3 3 

3 5 4 4 3 3 2 

2 4 4 3 3 2 2 

1 4 3 3 2 2 1 

 

Step 4 -Assess the strength of the control environment 

In order to effectively allocate internal audit resources we also need to understand the strength of the control 

environment within each auditable unit.  This is assessed based on: 

• our knowledge of your internal control environment 

• information obtained from other assurance providers 

• the outcomes of previous internal audit reviews. 

58



 

PwC • 11 

 

Step 5 -Calculate the audit requirement rating 

The inherent risk and the control environment indicator are used to calculate the audit requirement rating. The 

formula ensures that our audit work is focused on areas of with high reliance on controls or a high residual risk.  

Inherent Risk 

Rating 

Control design indicator 

1 2 3 4 5 6 

6 6 5 5 4 4 3 

5 5 4 4 3 3 n/a 

4 4 3 3 2 n/a n/a 

3 3 2 2 n/a n/a n/a 

2 2 1 n/a n/a n/a n/a 

1 1 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 

 

Step 6 -Determine the audit plan  
Your risk appetite determines the frequency and scope of internal audit work at each level of audit requirement.    

Your risk appetite determines the frequency of internal audit work at each level of audit requirement.  Auditable 
units may be reviewed annually, every two years or every three years. 

Step 7 -Other considerations 
In addition to the audit work defined through the risk assessment process described above, we may be 
requested to undertake a number of other internal audit reviews such as regulatory driven audits, value 
enhancement or consulting reviews. These have been identified separately in the annual plan.  

59



 

This document has been prepared for the intended recipients only.  To the extent permitted by law, PricewaterhouseCoopers 
LLP does not accept or assume any liability, responsibility or duty of care for any use of or reliance on this document by anyone, 
other than (i) the intended recipient to the extent agreed in the relevant contract for the matter to which this document relates (if 
any), or (ii) as expressly agreed by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP at its sole discretion in writing in advance.  

© 2013 PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. All rights reserved. 'PricewaterhouseCoopers' refers to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (a 
limited liability partnership in the United Kingdom) or, as the context requires, other member firms of PricewaterhouseCoopers 
International Limited, each of which is a separate and independent legal entity. 

 

 

 

60


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Financial Monitoring Report
	Appendix 1 GF Budget Monitoring -  Period 11 2012-13
	Appendix 2 HRA Budget Monitoring -  Period 11 2012-13
	Appendix 3 GF Capital Budget Monitoring - Period 11 2012-13
	Appendix 4 HRA Capital Budget Monitoring - Period 11 2012-13
	Appendix 5 - Car Parking Income and Usage P12
	Appendix 6 - Debt

	7 Policy for non-audit work
	Policy for Engagement of External Auditors for Non

	8 Internal audit annual opinion report
	9 Internal Audit Progress Report

